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AGENDA

Disposition of Minutes for Meeting Held September 20, 2022

Old Business

Subcommittee Items

1. Action Item

a.

Resolution to Approve the FY23 Internal Audit Plan
Michelle DiLullo, Staff Auditor, will report.

2. Discussion Items

a.

Required Communication with the Board of Trustees
Plante & Moran, PLLC, will report.

Audited Financial Report for Fiscal Years 2022 and 2021
Neal McNally, Vice President for Finance and Business Operations, and Katrena Davidson,
Associate Vice President and Controller, will report.

Ohio Senate Bill 6 Financial Ratio Analysis for Fiscal Year 2022
Neal McNally, Vice President for Finance and Business Operations, and Katrena Davidson,
Associate Vice President and Controller, will report.

Anonymous Reporting Hotline Stats Update
Michelle DiLullo, Staff Auditor, will report.

Audit Matrix Open Audit Recommendations Update

This matrix tracks the progress of the implementation of recommendations for
improvement or correction made by internal and external auditors.

Michelle DiLullo, Staff Auditor, will report.



C2f.=Tab7 f. Update on Enterprise Risk Management
Julie Gentile, Director of Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety, will report.

D. New Business

E. Adjournment



YOUNGSTOWN
STATE
UNIVERSITY

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FY23
ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

WHEREAS, the Annual Internal Audit Plan contains the planned scope and time
budget of audit engagements for the fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, Internal Audit assesses risk annually and focuses priorities of the
Annual Internal Audit Plan on risk exposures throughout the University; and

WHEREAS, the risk-based Annual Internal Audit Plan for fiscal year 2023 has
been developed; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of

Youngstown State University does hereby approve the FY23 Annual Internal
Audit Plan, attached hereto.

Board of Trustees Meeting
December 9, 2022

YR 2023-

HLC Criterion 5.A.1.



Youngstown State University

Proposed Internal Audit Plan Page 10f 2
Fiscal Year 2023
R e LER Projects ; ;
Current Year Audits:
Audit Risk
Project Area Scope Objectives Risk & Risk Category Rating | Total Budget Hours
Banner User Access - Outsourced to KSU  |Procedures and controls for granting, Ensure Banner user access is appropriately |Inappropriate Banner user access is inherently | High 20
modifying, and terminating Banner Access assigned and restricted based on least privilege )high risk in complex ERP system with a large ‘
within Banner modules (users have access only to what is required to  |number of users ‘
perform their duties) including read-only l
access to sensitive and confidential ‘
information, and maintains segregation of ‘ ‘
duties i
- - IT & Compliance \ |
Student Billing, Collections and Accounts |Procedures and controls related to tuition |Ensure billing, collections and accounts TUiEioin, adjusf;nents, and paymef\ts are rHigh 200
Receivable maintenance and billing, application of student |receivable internal controls are adequate and |incorrect; past due accounts are not properly ‘ [
|payments, collection processes, account write- |ensure that students were billed, collections managed; write offs are not compliant with \
offs, allowance for bad debt, and segregation of |applied and accounts receivable were managed |policies; allowance for bad debt is not
duties in accordance with university policies and adequate; and billing and collection [
procedures. |responsibilities are not properly segregated ‘
! I o . | |Financial & Operational ‘ il
External Funding - related to the Division |Procedures and controls related to the external ;Ensure cmﬁance with extern;ma‘ling 7 OperaTional proTteJures and financigbblicies T High | 200
of Workforce Education and Innovation funding related to the Division of Workforce requirements, that policies and procedures are|are not properly documented could impact \ '
Education and Innovation in relation to documented to ensure that funds are acquired,  compliance with external funding [
‘operational, financial, and compliance policies. |expended, and monitored in accordance with |requirements resulting in disallowed costs
the grant agreement, and university policy. and/or lost funding ‘ \
|
e I t |Financial, Operational, &E)rmpliancei J» - ) -
Facilities and Building Access Procedures and controls related to key |Analyze pr@sses foﬁsuing and managi?gA Unauthorized individuals gain access to | High 200
issuance, replacement and return; and ‘university keys; removal of building access |buildings; Ineffective key controls; lack of exit |
procedures for vendor or visitor access when it is no longer necessary; managing |procedures for inter-department transfers or ‘
vendor or visitor access and the accuracy of ‘separated employees
|related records [
|
[ - i - - - m |Facilities, Operational, & Compliance ] .
B o - o Total Current Year Audit 620

Consulting & Advisory:

Audit Risk
Project Area Scope Objectives Risk & Risk Category Rating Total Budget Hours
Consulting & Advisory Consulting/advisory assistance with other | Assist in evaluating the severity and probability |Internal controls not properly designed, Medium J 155
projects, including FY23 Enterprise Risk of emerging risks on campus. Monitor developed, or implemented, and internal
Management compliance within the Enterprise Risk control gaps not identified [
Assessment Mitigation Plan. ( N
- ) o o o o - o o Tot;ﬁ\dvisorﬁ: Consulting 155




Youngstown State University

Proposed Internal Audit Plan Page 2 of 2
Fiscal Year 2023
L L Projects Continued
Continuous Auditing and Follow-up on Open Audit Recommendations:
Audit Risk
Project Area Scope Objectives Risk & Risk Category Rating Total Budget Hours
Continuous Auditing - Analytics- Payroll Quarterly continuous auditing |Analysis of quarterly payroll data to ensure Fraud and errors related to payroll High 75
operating effectiveness of internal controls
| o ‘ o B ~ |Financial ) - B
Continuous Auditing - Analytics- A/P Quarterly continuous auditing Analysis of quarterly payables data to ensure  |Fraud and errors related to payables High 75
operating effectiveness of internal controls
i ) il 777{ B - _|Financial ‘ D J
Hotline Monitoring Ongoing monitoring of hotline reports Assess risk level and quality of hotline reports; Fraud/unethlcal conduct 1 8D 40
| ensure timely follow-up of reports as deemed | i
‘ necessary
e
|Various s | |
Follow-up on Open Audit ‘Follow -up on management's corrective actions |Validate corrective actions implemented to Corrective action plans not implemented to ‘ Various 70
Recommendations plans to address audit recommendations from |ensure audit findings are adequately and |address risks from control gaps identified in ‘
previously issued audit reports ltimely addressed
. e o \ 'VBFIOUS 74‘_ B | _ 1
Total Continuous Auditing & Followup on Open Audit Recommendatlons 260
Non-Project Hours
Category Description Total Budget Hours
Professional Development Webinars, seminars, workshops, etc.to obtain required CPEs for staff to retain professional certifications (CPA, CIA and CISA) and develop knowledge and skills 75
in relevant to audit, higher education and related risk topics; also fulfill university training requirements for employees ‘
Administrative R ﬁﬁanning, audit risk assessment,?uthSubcommittee prep: meetingﬁ and other time (vacation, sick, holiday) o - ‘ 450
|
\
|
525
Total Non-Project
Total Hours 1560




Plante & Moran, PLLC
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250 S. High Street
dl— Columbus, OH 43215
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plantemoran.com

October 13, 2022

To the Audit Subcommittee of the Board of Trustees
Youngstown State University

We have audited the financial statements of Youngstown State University (the “University”) as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2022 and have issued our report thereon dated October 13, 2022. Professional
standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated July 20, 2022, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with
your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your
responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the University. Such considerations were solely
for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such
internal control.

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters.

Our audit of the University's financial statements has also been conducted in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Under Government Auditing
Standards, we are obligated to communicate certain matters that come to our attention related to our audit
to those responsible for the governance of the University, including compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; certain instances of error or fraud; illegal acts applicable
to government agencies; and significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
Toward this end, we issued a separate letter dated October 13, 2022 regarding our consideration of the
University's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our
meeting about planning matters on July 22, 2022.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with
the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting
policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the University are described in
Note 1 to the financial statements.



To the Audit Subcommittee of the Board of Trustees October 13, 2022
Youngstown State University

As described in Note 1, the University changed accounting policies related to leases with the adoption of
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, resulting in approximately $2 million of lease assets and liabilities being
recognized as of the implementation date. Accordingly, the accounting change has been retrospectively
applied to prior periods presented as if the policy had always been used.

We noted no transactions entered into by the University during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus.

We noted no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different
period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly
from those expected.

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were as follows:

e Student Accounts Receivable Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts - The University's
management has established the student accounts receivable allowance by applying estimated
uncollectible percentages to the balances based upon the aging. The uncollectible percentages were
estimated based upon prior experience at the University.

¢ Student Loans Receivable Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts - The University’s management
has established the student loans receivable allowance by applying estimated uncollectible
percentages to the balances based upon their status (e.g., current, past due, or in default). The
uncollectible percentages were estimated based upon prior experience at the University.

e Liability for Accrued Compensated Absences - Management calculates the liability for
compensated absences based on eligible service requirements and hours accumulated. We have
evaluated this estimated liability by reviewing the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions used by the University, testing data related to the calculation, and performing clerical tests
on the calculation itself.

¢ Liability for Group Employee Benefit Self-insurance - The University's management has
established an estimated liability for group employee benefit self-insurance liability claims based on
historical experience.

e Net Pension and OPEB Liabilities - Management's estimate of the unfunded liability for the pension
plan and the OPEB plan was calculated by multiplying the University’s portion of the contributions
made to the respective plans by the total pension liability of the plans provided by an independent
actuary. The independent actuary used a number of assumptions to determine the overall unfunded
liability of each plan.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates described above in
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial statement
disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. The most
sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was in Note 16 related to the impact of the pandemic.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in performing and completing our audit.



To the Audit Subcommittee of the Board of Trustees October 13, 2022
Youngstown State University

Disagreements with Management

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant
to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.

We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.

The attached schedule summarizes an uncorrected misstatement of the financial statements that was
requested to be recorded. Management has determined that its effect is immaterial, both individually and
in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. However, uncorrected misstatements or
matters underlying those uncorrected misstatements could potentially cause future period financial
statements to be materially misstated.

Significant Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, business conditions affecting the University, and business plans and strategies that may affect
the risks of material misstatement, with management each year prior to our retention as the University’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship, and
our responses were not a condition of our retention.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated October 13, 2022.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a second opinion on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the University's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.

To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
This information is intended solely for the use of the audit subcommittee of the board of trustees and
management of the University and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Plante & Moran, PLLC

ey

Keith S. Martinez, CPA
Partner



Attachment

Client: Component Unit of Youngstown State University
Y/E:  6/30/2022
SUMMARY OF UNRECORDED POSSIBLE ADJUSTMENTS

The effect of mi and 1 errors identified would be to increase (decrease) the reported amounts in the
financial statement categories identified below:

Long-term Current Long-term Impact to Net
Ref. # Description of Misstatement Current Assets Assets Liabilties _ Liabi Net Assets Revenue Expenses Assets
IFACTUAL MISSTATEMENTS: |
Al Adjustment to record activity of The Penguin Club, Inc.
as a discretely presented component unit of the
University $ 2,918,000 $ 415,000 $ 2503000 $§ 1514000 S 1675000 $ (161,000)
|JUDGMENTAL ADJUSTMENTS: |
B1 None i
[PROJECTED ADJUSTMENTS: ]
c1 None a5 - % . - # .
Total $ 2,918,000 § - $ 415000 § - § 2503000 $ 1,514,000 $§ 1675000 $ (161,000)
|PASSED DISCLOSURES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION ISSUES: J
D1 None
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY
MESSAGE FROM PRESIDENT TRESSEL

October 13, 2022

There's a printed flver that we produce every vear to hand out to folks at campus events and
watherings that includes all sonts of numbers 1o explain our umversiy profile - 100+ majors, 200
student organizations, 5 university residence halls, $42.6 million in rescarch and service grants, 21
athletics 1eams, and so on. Many of'these numbers are part of the FY 2022 Annual Financial Report
now before vou. The numbers certainly are impressive. reflecting the magnitude of the impact that
YSU continues to have on our community and our region. Numbers, as they sayv, don't lie

But truth be told. I've never been much of a numbers guy myselll Maybe that's because we all
know that the real story behind all of these numbers are tens of thousands of alums. students.
donors, faculty and stalT whose decades of hard work, dedicaton and generosity have left a lasting
imprint on the entire Northeast Ohio and Western Pennsy Ivania regions

Individuals like Tumi Adecko. a Mechamical Enginecring major named National STEM Intemn of
the Year, the third straight vear that a YSU student has won the award Or alumnag Amy Acton.
who led the Ohio Department of Health through the carly stages of the COVID-19 pandemic and
was recently named onc of US4 Today's Women of the Year Then there 1s Chander M Kohli.
neurosurgeon and former YSU trustee, and s wife, Karen. who donated $5 million to support the
new YSU Excellence Traiming Center It was the largest donation in our record-setung $126
million "We See Tomorrow™ lund-raising campaign  Also consider Dan Kuzma, who leads YSU's
campus reeveling program that consistently ranks first in Ohio and in the top 10 nationally.
diverung theusands of tons of matenals from arca landfills. And. finally. there’s faculty Jeff Dick
and Tom Jordan, and the entire Department of Physics, Astronomy, Geology and Environmental
Scienee, who recently recewved the prestigious FBI Director’s Commumity Leadership Award for
their assistance and expertise in several recent cnnunal investigations

These individuals. and thousands more like them across the region, nauon and the world. are at
the heart of all we do and are central to any report about YSU's health and future. Through more
than a century of financial ups and downs, bulls and bears, pandemics and prospenty, it is our
people who have driven us to ever-increasing heights and will conunue to guide us in our continued
pursuit of excellence

Suncerely vours,

Fpmse P Tice]

James P Tressel

President
|
plante s

moran

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees
Youngstown State Universty

Report on the Audits of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component
unit of Youngstown State University (the "University”), a component unit of the State of Chio, as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Youngstown State University's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the business-type activities and the y presented P unit of Y State
University as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 and the respective changes in s financial position and, where applicable,
cash flews thereol for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audds in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unted States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States Our responsibilites under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements sectian of cur report We are
required to be independent of the University and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audts. We believe that the audt evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audt opinions

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2022, the University adopted new accounting guidance
under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases Our opinion is not medified
with respect lo this matter

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Manag is for the pri and fair of the financial statements in accardance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 1 of financial that are

free fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is requirad to evaluate whether there are canditions or events,
considerad in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the University's ability to continue as a going
cancern for 12 manths beyond the financial statement date. including any currently known information that may
raise substantial doubt shertly thereafter



To the Board of Trustees
Youngstown State University

Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements

Qur cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole are free
from material misstatement, whether due te fraud or efror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinions. is a high level of but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a
guarantee that audits conducted in accordance with GAAS and Govarnmen! Audifing Standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting frem error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, indnidually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements

In performing audits in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we

Exercise icnal and maintain prof I skepticism g the audits

Identdy and assess the risks of materia! misstatement of the financial statements, whether due lo fraud or
erfor, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclasures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropniate in the circumstances but not for the purposa of expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness af the
University's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinian is expressed

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasor of fi
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall of the financial
» Conclude whether, in our | there are or events, i d in the agg , that raise

substantial doubt about the University's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable penod of time.

We are required to communicale with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scape and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audits

eq Y

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Unfted States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, the schedule of the University's proportionate share of the net pension kabilty, the
schedule of the University's pension contributions, the schedule of the Urwvrsﬂyfs prnpﬂmonatu share of the net
OPEB hLabiity (asset), and the schedule of the University's OPEB d to the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of mirmg!menl and, altheugh net a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Euird which considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial in pp

economic, of historical context. We have applied certain imited procedures to lhe requ;rad supplementary
information in accordance with audting standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
ather knowledge we obtained during our audils of the basic financial statements We do net express an opinion of
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance

To the Beard of Trustees
Youngstown State University

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
camprise Youngstown State University's basic financial statements The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost iples. and Audit Reg ts for Federal Awards (the “Uniform Guidance™), is presented for the
purpose of additional analysis and is not a required pan of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the auddt of the basic financial and certain . including
comparing and reconciing such information directly to the undertying accounting and umer records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additonal
procedures in accordance with auditng standards generally accepted in the United States of America In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the basic financial statements. The other
information comprises the message fram President Tressel, the board of trustees, and the executive officers but
does not include the basic financial statements and our audttor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic
financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of
assurance thereon

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements
or whather the other inf appears to be If, based an the work performed,
we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the umer information exists, we are required to
describe it in our report

Other R ing Req; by Auditing
In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 13, 2022 on
cur consideration of Youngstown State University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
with certain p! of laws, reg . contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinicn on the effectiveness of Youngstown State
Unrvelsaty‘s m!amar contral over financial r:peﬂmg or on comphance. That report is an integral part of an audit
Auditing in g Young! State Unwersity's

mlnmal mnbnl over financial reporting and compliance

7424& f 27{»«1, ALee

October 13, 2022

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management's Discussion and Analysis section of Youngstown State University’s (the
University or YSU) Financial Report presents a discussion and analysis of the financial
performance of the University during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 with comparative
nformation for the fiscal vears ended June 30. 2021 and June 30, 2020, This discussion has been
prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial staiements and the
accompanying noles that follow

Introduction
An Institution of Opportumity Y SU inspires individuals, enhances futures. and ennches lives

As a student-centered university, Youngstown State University 's mission is to provide mnovatve
lifelong learning opportunitics that will inspire individuals, enhance futures, and ennch lives. YSU
inspires individuals by cultivating a cunosity for lifclong leaming: enhances the futures of our
students by cmpowenng them to discover, disseminate, and apply their me ledge., am! cnnchcs

the region by fostening collaboration and the ady of ceivie, . and gical

dev clopmcnl ¥SU's culture of enrichment Nourishes in our diverse. accessible, and quality
education

Youngstown State University 1s where students thnve in their educational and carcer pursuits,
where scholarship creates innovatve solutions, and where community engagement is a comerstone
of collaboration that collectively contribute to the sustainable prosperity of the region and bevond

We - the faculty, stall, ndmmlslralurs and students of Youngstown State University - hold the
foll g values I to acl g the mission and realizing the vision:

«  Centrality of Students - We put students first. fostering ther holistic and lifelong success

= Excellence and Innovation - We bring acad 1 to leaming and
life for all stakcholders.

e [niegnty and Human Dignity -~ We root all behaviors, decisions and actions in the
achievement of integrity, mutual respect. collegiality, equity and inclusion

« Collab and Public E ~ We embrace collaboration and create innovative

p hips to foster y and enrich our university, our culture. and region

The University started out as a single commercial law course offered by the local YMCA Overa
century later, it serves the Youngstown area with the same passion. and consists of the College of
Graduate Studies and five undergraduate colleges: the Beeghly College of Liberal Ants, Social
Sciences, and Education; the Bitonte College of Health and Human Services: the Chiffe College of
Creative Ans, the College of Science, Technology, Engincenng, and Mathematics, and the
Williamson College of Business Administration.  The University offers degrees at the
undergraduate, graduate, and doctoral levels

The University is located on a 145-acre campus near downtown Youngstown, Ohio and 15
equidistant (approximately 60 miles) from both Pittsburgh and Cleveland  Fall 2022 enrollment
was 11,072

'y

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.)

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a respiratory discase
caused by a new coronavirus a pandemic, now known as COVID-19. In response to the COVID-
19 pandemic, governments have taken preventative or protective aclions, such as temporarny
closures of nos tial b and “shelter-at-home™ gwidelines for individuals As a result.
the global cconomy has been negatively affected. and the University’s operations were also
impacted  Due to the “shelter-at-home™ guidelines during Apnl and May 2020, the University
shifted to a remote online leaming environment and sent students home  The University issued
room and board adjustments, resulting in refunds to students. The University also had many events
cancelled or temporanly postponed unul the “shelter-at-home™ guidelines were reduced or
removed. which resulted in lost revenues for the University for the vears ended June 30, 2021 and
Junc 30, 2020 In response, the University instituted measures to reduce personnel expenses,
including porary lavolls, p layofls. furloughs. and pav reducti In addition.
operating expenses were reduced by closing some operations, suspending travel, and rencgotiating
vendor contracts. To offset the financial impact to students, the losses incurred by the University
due to the disruption caused by COVID-19 and 1o defray COVID-19 expenses. the University
received grants and other relicl primarily authorized through the Coronavirus Aid. Relief, and
Economic Secunity (CARES) Act, the Coronavirus Relicf & Recovery  Supplemental
Appropriations Act (CRRSAA), and the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021

Using the Financial Statements

The Umiversity's financial report includes three basic financial statements: the Statement of Net

Position; the St of R Exp and Changes i Net Position, and the Statement
of Cash Flows. These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the financial reporung
format required by the Goy 1A Standards Board's (GASB) Statements No 34,

Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments, as amended; and No 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management s Discussion
and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universitics, as ded These ¢ bl
standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and universities and require that
Tinaneial statements be presented on a basis to focus on the financial condiion of the University.
the results of operations, and cash flows of the University as a whole

During fiscal year 2018, the University adopted GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB) and duning fiscal
vear 2013, the University adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounnng and Financial Reporting
Jor Pensions - an amendment of GASE Statement No. 27. These statements sigmificantly revised
accounting for pension/OPEB costs and assets/liabilities

Prior to GASBs 68 and 75, the accounting for pension/OPEB costs, was focused on a funding
approach, which limited pension/OPEB costs 1o contributions annually required by law, which
may or may not be sulficient to fully fund cach pension plan’s net pension/OPEB asset/lability

Under the standards required by these statements. the net pension/OPEB assetliabihity equals the
University's proportionate share of each pension/OPEB plan’s collecuve present value of
estmated future pension/OPEB benefits atributable to employees” past service minus plan asscts
available to pav these benefits. Pension/OPEB obligations, whether funded or unfunded, are pant
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of the “employment exchange™ - that is, the employee is trading his or her labor in exchange for
wages, benefits and the promise of a future pension and OPEB. The unfunded portions of these
pension/OPEB p cs are a present obli . part of a bar; d-for benefit to the emplovee.
and are reported by the Umiversity as habilities since the benefit of the exchange was recerved

The nature of Ohio’s statewide pension svstems and state law goveming those systems requires
additional explanation in order to properly understand the informauon presented i these
statements. The University 1s not responsible for certain key factors affecting the balance of these
habilies  In Ohio. the emplovee shares the obligation of funding pension benclits with the
employer  Both emplover and employec contnbution rates are capped by the State statute. A
change in these caps requires action by both Houses of the General Assembly, and approval of the
Govemnor  Benelit provisions are also determined by State statute  The employee enters the
emplovment exchange with the knowledge that the emplover’s promise 1s limited not by contract
but by law  The emplover enters the exchange also knowing that there is a specific, legal limit to
1ts contribution to the pension system In Olio, there 1s no legal means to enforee the unfunded
liability of the pension system against the public emplover  State law operates o mitigate the
obligation of the public employer to the employee because all parties enter the employment

exchange with notice as to the law  The pension svstem is resy ble for the ad of
the plan
Most long-term habilities have set repavment schedules or, in the case of compensated absences

(1¢ sick and vacation leave), arc satisfied through paid ume-off or termination payments There
15 no repavment schedule for the net pension/OPEB assetliabilities Changes in pension/OPEB
benefits, contnibution rates. and return on investments affect the balances of the net pension/OPEB
assct/labilitics. but are outside the control of the public employer. In the event that contributions,
investment retums and other changes are insufficient to keep up wath required pavments, State
statute does not assign/idenufy the resp bl panty for the unfunded portion. Due to the unique
nature of how the net pension/OPEB asscU/liabilities are satisfied. these assets and liabiliues are
separately identified within the noncurrent asset and noncurrent liability sections of the Statement
of Net Position

In accordance with GASBs 68 and 75, the University’s statements. prepared on an accrual basis
of accounung. include an annual pension/OPEB expense for the proporuonate share of cach
pension plan’s change in net pension/OPEB assetliability
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A summanzed companson of the Universiy's assets, deferred outtlows of resources. habilitics.
deferred inflows of resources. and net position at June 30. 2022, 2021, and 2020 follows

As Restated
June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Assets
Currentassets § R 60,161 K0TS $ 6121355
Moncurrent assets
Capital assets. net 225004275 226,308 048 219,960,430
trher assets I0ET061Y IBT2NTIK 11826862
[utal noncurrent assets 264 K74 R0 265031793 251.793.302
atal Assets 151241055 359.106.277 313714657
Deterred Outilows of Resources 25271598 19,957 609 27832781
Labilities
Current babilities 27.162.689 27.159.030 26164070
Noncument liabilities 4072 182,280 200 231807, 101
Total Liabiities 154456701 209,439,329 2579071171
Drefermed Intlows of Resources T9G.614 43.242.81% 32,373,740
Total Net Postion S 142.149.278 $ 126381812 $_ 51202527
Net Position
Net inyestment i capital assets $ 157523714 $ 156,049,345 $ 147,352,730
Restneted 37,343,508 28284607 20,338,685
Unrestrcted (527179410 (57,952 140} (125188 888)
Fotal Net Position § 142.149.278 S 126,381 812 $ 51202527

Current assets include unrestnicted and restnicted cash and cash equivalents, investments that
mature within one year. receivables. mventonies. and other short-term assets  Noncurrent assets
include unrestricted mvestments that mature i more than ene vear and investments that are
restricted by denors or external parties as to their use. Also included are receivables deemed to be
collecuble in more than one vear. capital assets. and net OPEB assets  Current asscts decreased
$7 7 million from {iscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2022 and increased $32 2 million from fiscal year
2020 to fiscal vear 2021 Noncurrent assets remained flat from fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2022
and increased $13 2 million from fiscal vear 2020 1o fiscal year 2021

Deferred outflows of resources include resources where the consumption 1s applicable to a future
reporting period. but does not require further exchange of service  Deferred outflows, which
include items relating to pensions/OPEB. increased $5 3 million from fiscal vear 2021 to fiscal
vear 2022 and decreased $7 9 million from fiscal vear 2020 to fiscal vear 2021

Current habiliies include all habiliues that are pavable within the next fiscal yvear  Uneamed
revenucs. principally from summer programs, are also presented as current habilities  Liabilitics
that arc duc to be paid bevond the next fiscal vear are reported as noncurrent habiliies and include
debt, compensated absences, and net pension/OPEB asset/habihiies  Current habalities remained
Mat from fiscal vear 2021 to fiscal vear 2022 and inereased S1 million from fiscal year 2020 1o
fiscal year 2021 Noncwrent habihiies decreased $55 million from fiseal year 2021 1o fiscal year
2022 and decreased $49.5 mullion from fiscal vear 2020 to fiscal vear 2021
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Overall key presentation elements of the financial statements include

®  Assets and labiliues are categonzed as either current or noncurrent  Current assets and habihines
will be consumed or fulfilled withun one year

*  Revenues and expenses are categonzed as either operating or non-operating. Significant recurmnng
sources of the University s revenues. including State of Oluo (State) appropnations. certain grants.
gifts and imvestment income are considered non-operating. as defined by GASB Statement No. 35

*  Unersity scholarshps that represent reduced tuition (¢ . arc applied to student accounts rather than
refunded 1o students) are shown as a reduction of tuition. fees and other student charges. while
payments made directly to students are presented as scholarship expense Third party scholarships
are treated as though the students made the payments themselves

«  Capital assets are reponted net of accumulated depreciation

In accordance with GASB Statement No 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. as amended by
GASB Statement No 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units, and
GASB Statement No 61, The Financial Reporting Entity.  Omntbus. The Youngstown State
University Foundation (YSUF or Foundation) 1s treated as a component unit of the Umversity

The Found 15 discretely p d 10 this report by presentation of the individual financial
diately foll g the University's respective GASB financial statements
Additional inf on this comy L unit is din Note 15, M, ‘s Discussion

and Analysis focuses on the University and does not include the component unit

In fiseal year 2022, the University adopted GASB Statement No. 87 Leases the objective of which
is to better meet the infi needs of fi ial cnt users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases  This resulted in a change in accounting principle and has been
relleeted as of July 1, 2020 Refer to Note | for details

The Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the University at the end of the
fiscal vear and includes all assets (cwrent and noncurrent), deferred outflows of resources,
habilities (current and noncurrent), deferred inflows of resources. and net position of the
University. Current assets are classified as such if they are available to sausfy current liabil
which arc generally defined as bang duc within one year of the date of the Statement of Net
Position Net position 1s onc indicator of the financial condiion of the University, whle the change
n net position 1s an indicator of whether the overall financial condition has improved or worsened
during the year

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.)

Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of resources that arc apphicable to a future
reporng pertod. Deferred nflows of resources which include unamorurzed concession
arrangements and items relating to pensions/OPEB increased $36 7 million from fiscal year 2021
to fiscal vear 2022 and increased $10.9 million from fiscal vear 2020 to fiscal year 2021

Assers

Asscts pnmanly consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments, receivables and capual assets
The following table summarizes balances at

As Restated

June 30,2022

Cash and cash equivakents $ 29097272
Investments TOLRR007 £ 68,470,267
Accounts, loans, and pledges receivable, net 11,994 668 14574813 12615.5%
fet OPIBasse 13 41 9,486,443 5,446,000
Capital assets, net 225.004.275 226, 308045 219,596,440
Onher 1.R29.592 1,747, 166 1424 897
Total Assets $ 151241055 § 359,106,277 $ 113.714.657

Cash and cash equivalents increased $2 8 mullion or 11% from fiscal year 2021 to fiscal vear 2022
This increase was duc to a combination of $97 4 million used i operating activitics, $108 7 million
provided by noncapital financing activities, $ 8 mullion used in invesung activities, and $7.7
million used in capital and related financing acuivitics

Investments decreased $6 6 mullion or 9% from fiscal vear 2021 to fiscal vear 2022 Unrestnicted
mvestments decreased $4.5 mullion whereas end and 1 inv decreased
$2 I mullion  This decrease was primanly due to unrealized losses resulting from an unfavorable
market environment Investments in equity mutual funds and common stock funds decreased $9.2
milhion and $2 7 million, respectively, whereas alternative investments mcreased $5 million

Overall accounts, loans. and pledges receivable. net deereased $6 6 million or 35% from fiscal
vear 2021 to fiscal year 2022 This decrease was prmarily due to a decrease in net accounts
receivable  Net accounts receivable decreased $6.3 million from $18 million at June 30, 2021 to
$11.7 mullion at June 30, 2022 Student accounts, net decreased $1.1 million. largely due to the
utilization of $2.7 million of HEERF funds to discharge student debt Grants and contracts
receivables. net decreased $5.8 million due to the drawn down of $2.6 million in unreimbursed
uses of HEERF funds and receipt of $2 7 million in grants receivables relating to the construction
of the Excellence Traiming Center. State capital appropriations receivables increased $1 mullion
due to increased vear end activity on capital projects funded from state capital appropriations

Net OPEB assets increased $3 7 million or 39% from fiscal vear 2021 to fiscal ycar 2022 The
mercase was pnmanly due to a $3 3 mullion ncrease 1 the OPERS net OPEB asset The STRS
Ohio and OPERS net OPEB asset balances were $5.9 million and $7.3 mullion at June 30. 2022
compared to $5.3 millien and $4 million at June 30, 2021 respectively

10
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Cash and cash cquivalents increased $20.5 million or 354% from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year
2021 This increase was partially due to unbudgeted reimbursements from COVID-19 rehief funds
for lost revenues and expenses including defraying payroll costs, recovering indirect costs, and
restored state appropriations not budgeted. along with unspent grant revenue received in advance
of expenses

Investments increased $8 2 million or 12% from fiscal year 2020 1o fiscal yvear 2021, This increase
was primanly due to unrealized gains resulting from a favorable market environment

Overall accounts. loans. and pledges receivable. net increased $6 million or 47 2% from fiscal vear
202010 fiscal vear 2021 This increase was pnimanly due 1o an increase in net accounts receivable
Net accounts receivable increased $6 3 mullion from $11.7 million at June 30. 2020 to $18 mullion
at June 30. 2021. Student accounts. net increased $1.7 million largely due to the impact of a
student reengagement imtiative utilizing $2.7 million of Higher Education Emergency Relicf Fund
(HEERF) funds in fiscal vear 2022 to discharge student debt, which resulted in a decrease n the
allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2021 Grants and contracts receivables. net increased
$7 million due to $4 million increase in year-end capital grant activity relating to the construction
of the Excellence Traming Center. and $2 6 mullion in unreimbursed uses of HEERF funds
awarded State capual appropriauon receivables decreased 1.4 million due to decreased year end
activity on capital projects funded from state capital appropriations. and other receivables
decreased §1 million

Net OPEB asscts incrcased $4 million or 74% from fiscal vear 2020 to fiscal year 2021

Refer 1o Note 3 for additional information on cash and cash cquivalents. Note 4 for details on
investments. Note 3 for information on accounts and loans receivable, and Note 6 for informaton
on pledges receivable

At June 30, 2022, the University had $225 mullion in capital asscts, net of accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation totaled $14 8 million. $14 1 mullion, and $14 1 sullion in fiscal vears
2022, 2021, and 2020 respacuvely

Details of net capital asscts are shown below

As Restated As Restated

June 30, 2022 June 30,2021 June 30, 2020

Land $ IBS53RA0 A1 § 17789043
Bulklmgs. net 92,196,287 ¥ 101,561,380
Inprovenents to buldings, net 80.215.957 8137110 67,462 490
Inprovements other than buillings, net 19,866,589 20,964,408 284,712
Construction i progress 5,553,303 1,515,662 4.290,786
Moveable equipment and fumiture, net G016 AR 4857512 5,249,533
Vehicles, net 303,254 299,330
Historical treasures 1041338 043,288
Right-to-use assels - equipment 212,198 16613360
Total Capual Assets. net § 225004 275 $ 226,308 (45 $ 221.542.798
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Major capital activity during fiscal vear 2022 included the completion of the campus development
projeet to upgrade and replace various walkways, entrances, retaming walls and other exterior
clements Parking improvements included repairs and renovations to the parking decks during
2021 and the resurfacing of the M63 parking lot. Building impy luded the compl

of the third phase of renovations in Ward Beecher Hall as well as renovations to the greenhouse
In addition, the third phase of renovatons to the Physical Therapy department in Cushwa Hall
were completed as well as the second phase of renovations in Fedor Hall Renovations were also
made in the Edward J. Salata Complex, the restrooms in Kileawley Center and the Alumni Events
office in Tod Hall The chiller in Kileawley House was replaced and upgrades were made to the
air handling unit in Bliss Hall. Muluple parcels of land were purchased including parcels on Fifth
Avenue and West Commerce Street with the intent of ereating additional parking arcas as well as
parcels on West Raven Avenue with the intent of creaung the Watson Team Center, a space to
house the University's engineering and engineenng technology competition teams. Construction
i progress includes the Watson Team Center and renovations Lo various buildings across campus
10 address the exterior detenoration of building eny elopes. upgrade HVAC and air handling units.
repair and replace elevators, upgrade the uulity disiribution sy stems and upgrade doors to enhance
campus safety  In additon, renovations are underway in Moser Hall and the Lyden House
bathrooms as well as repairs and renovations to Kohli Hall's roof

Major caputal activaty duning fiscal year 2021 included the completion of the Excellence Training
Center located in Kohli Hall as well as renovations to Fedor Hall and the two pedestrian bridges
on campus. The sccond phase of renovations to the Physical Therapy department in Cushwa Hall
was completed as well as renovations in Maag Library and the Natatorium in the Beeghly Center
In addition, restrooms in Sweeney Hall and Cushwa Hall were updated. the roofs on Fok Hall and
Ward Beecher Hall were replaced. and structural improyements were made to Ward Beecher Hall
Also. renovations took place in Stambaugh Stadium to create office and locker room space for
swimming and lacrosse. and the Beede Field artificial turl was replaced  Parking improvements
included repairs and renovations to the M30 and M60 parking decks and the resurfacing of the
M70 parking lot. Construction in progress includes Campus Development which wall upgrade and
replace various walkways. entrances. retaining walls and other exterior elements, repairs and
renovations 1o the M30 and M6G0 parking decks, the sccond phase of renovations to Fedor Hall,
the third phase of renovations to the Physical Therapy Department in Cushwa Hall. and the
replacement of the Kilcawley House chiller

Mayor capital activity during fiscal year 2020 ncluded completion of the multimedia center on the
cast side of Stambaugh Stadium and the North Central Parking Lot adjacent to the multimedia
center  Also, an athletic field on the north side of campus was completed as well as an indoor
tennis facility, The first phase of renovations was completed in the Cushwa Hall physical therapy
department, and the sccond phase of renovations were completed in Meshel Hall. Additionally,
the Bliss Hall entranceway was renovated as well as upgrades to the utility distribution system and
roof repairs to the Cafaro House and Lyden House dormitories. Construction in progress includes
the Excellence Traming Center which 1s part of the Mahoning Valley Innovation &
Commeraializauon Consoruum, Ward Beecher Science Hall structural  improvements,
replacement of the Fok Hall roof and sections of the Ward Beecher roof, and renovations to the
two pedestrian bridges on campus

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.)
See Note 7 for addinonal imformation on capital assets

Other assets remained (lat from fiscal year 2021 to fiscal vear 2022, and from fiscal year 2020 o
fiscal year 2021

eferred Out Anfls

of Resources

Deferred outllows of resources represent the consumption of resources that are applicable to a
future reporting period, but do not require further exchange of goods or services. whereas deferred
inflows of resources represent the acquisition of resources that are applicable to a future reporting
penod  The following table summarizes balances at

Deferred Outflows of Resources Junc 30,2022 Junc 30,2021
Related to pension $ 23035309 3 15805606
Related to OPER TRO03S 2,597,825
Bond refunding 1456254 1.554 268
Total Deferred Outilows of Resources § 25271.598 3 19.957.69
Deferred Inflows of Resources June 30,2022 June 30,2021
Bervice concession agrecments £ 132,500 3 220,000
Related to pension 65,195,303 22,329,129
Related 10 OPER 14578811 20,693,706 522,
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3 79906614 $ 43242835 $ 32373740

Included i deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are items relating to
pensions, OPEB, bond relunding, and service concession agreements Certan clements impacting
the changes in the net pension/OPEB assevliabilities have a longer-term perspective than the
current year, therefore to reduce volatility these clements arc amorized over a closed penod of
specified duranon These include differences between expected and actual experience. changes of
assumptions. net differences between projected and actual carmings of investments, and changes
in the proportionate share of contributions  These clements can be reflected as either a deferred
outllow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources

Deferred outflows of resources increased $5.3 mullion or 27% from fiscal vear 2021 1o fiscal year
2022, Deferred outflows of resources related to pension increased $7 2 million or 46% primanly
duc to primanly due 1o a combination of a $2 mullion increase in the difference between expected
and actual experience, including a $1 1 million increase related to the OPERS plan and a $09
million increase related to the STRS Ohio plan. an $8 3 million increase in change in assumptions.
including a $2.6 million related 1o the OPERS plan and a §5 9 nullion inercase to the STRS Ohio
plan. and a 83 7 millon decrease in the net difference between projected and actual camings on
pension plan investments related 1o the STRS Ohio plan. Deferred outflows of resources related
to OPEB decreased $1.8 million or 70% primarily due to a $1.6 nullion decrease in the changes in
assumptions, including a $1.9 mallion decrease related to the OPERS plan and a $0.3 nullion
wncrease related 1o the STRS Ohio plan
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Deferred inflows of resources increased $36.7 nillion or 85% from fiscal year 2021 to fiscal vear
2022 Deferred inflows of resources related to pension increased $42.9 nullion or 192% pnmarily
due 10 a §42.7 mullion increasc n the net difference between projected and actual camings on
pension plan investments, including an $11.6 million increase related to the OPERS plan and a
$31 million increase to the STRS Ohio plan  Deferred inflows of resources related 10 OPEB
decreased $6.1 million or 30% pnmanly duc to a combination of a $2 5 million decrease in the
differences between expected and actual experience related to the OPERS plan: a $32 million
decrease in the changes in assumptions. including a $3.5 million decrease related to the OPERS
plan and a $1.7 million decrease related to the STRS Ohio plan: a $3 million increase in the net
difference between projecied and actual carmings on OPEB plan investments, including a $1 4
million increase related to the OPERS plan and a $1.6 million increase related to the STRS Ohio
plan; and a $135 nullion decrease in the changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of contributions related to the OPERS plan

Deferred outflows of resources decreased $7 9 million or 28% from fiscal vear 2020 to fiscal vear
2021 Deferred outflows of resources related to pension decreased $44 million or 21 85%
prmarily due to a combinauon of a $7 1 nullion decrease in changes in assumptions, including
$2.6 mullion decrease related to the OPERS plan and $4.5 mullion decrease related to the STRS
Ohio plan and a $3.7 mullion increase in the net difference between projected and actual camings
on pension plan investments related to the STRS Olio plan. Deferred outflows of resources related
to OPEB decreased $3 3 mullion or 56.2% pnimarily due to a $3 4 million decrease i the net
difference between projeeted and actual carmings on OPEB plan investments related to the OPERS
plan

Deferred inflows of resources increased $11 million or 34% from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal vear
2021. Deferred inflows of resources related to pension increased $2 8 million or 14 25% pnmarily
duc to a $2 million increase in change in proportionate share of contnbution, including $1 6 million
increase related to the OPERS plan, and $0 4 million increase related to the STRS Ohio plan
Although the net difference between projected and actual eaming on pension plan inyestments
decreased 50 2 million, this included an increase of $3 4 million related to the OPERS plan and a
decrease of $3.6 million related to the STRS Ohio plan. Deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB increased $8 2 million or 65 25% pnmanly due to a combination of a $5 7 million ncrease
n change in assumptions, including a $6 4 million increase relaung to the OPERS plan and $0 7
million decrease relating to the STRS Ohio plan: a $1.3 million increase in the difference between
expected and actual experience, including $0.5 million increase relating to the OPERS plan and
$0.8 mullion increase relating to the STRS Ohio plan: and a $1.1 million increase in the change in
proportionate share of contribution relating to the OPERS plan

See Note 13 for additional information on employee benefit plans

Dunng fiscal year 2014, the University entered into a ten-year agreement with a food service
company for the exclusive right to provide and manage the University's food service program
including catering services The University received mitial support funds in the amount of
$425.000 which are contingent upon the University utilizing the services of the food service
company over the ten-year peniod  Duning fiscal year 2015, the University entered nto a ten-year
agreement with a beverage company for exclusive pounng nights and sponsorship program  The
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University received imtial support funds in the amount of $450,000 which arc conungent upon the
University utihizing the services of the beverage company over a ten-vear period  The unamortized
amounts are reflected as Deferred Inflows of Resources in the Statement of Net Posiion

Liabiliues largely consist of accrued pavroll and payvroll withholdings. debt, uncamed revenue
d

comp . and net pe /OPEB assct/hatnlity  The following table summanzes
balances at
As Restated
June 30,2022 June 30,2021 June 30, 2020
Accounts and construction payablke S 7,006,100 s 3man $ 4STI9%
Payvroll kabilites 8.70R8TT 8418693 8,150,858
Notes payable 12.100.512 11,059,956 13,919.024
Bonds payable. net 55327061 56,985,641 60.278073
Uneamed revenue 6618717 T.185.847 6,384 286
Conpensated absences 6,314,388 6,595 241 6,990,868
Refundable advance 10 Tl 1L2RRE

Crher 2768 844 2053012
Net pension abaity 55.467.057 108 %06, R%) 120,551 657
Net OPED habiliry - - 11470540

Total Labilties § 154456761 $ 204,439,129 $ 257571171

Total habilines decreased $55 mullion or 26%a from fiscal vear 2021 1o fiscal year 2022
Accounts and construction payable increased $1.7 million largely due to increased year end
activity on construction projects  Bonds pavable decreased $1.7 nullion due o scheduled debt
service payments  The net pension liability decreased $53 million, including a $40. 1 million
deercase in the STRS Ohio net pension liability and a $12 9 million decrease in the OPERS net
pension liability  The STRS Ohio and OPERS net pension hability balances were $36 million
and $19.5 million at June 30, 2022 compared 1o $76.1 mullion and $32 4 mullion at June 30,
2021. respectively

Total liabilities decreased S48 5 million or 19% from fiscal vear 2020 to fiscal vear 2021 Bonds
pavable decreased $3 3 million due to scheduled debt service payments. The net pension habiliy
decrcased $12 million, including a $3 4 million increase in the STRS Ohio net pension hability
and a $15 4 million decrease in the OPERS net pension liability. The STRS Ohio and OPERS net
pension liability balances were $76 1 mullion and $32.4 nullion at June 30, 2021 compared 1o $72 7
million and $47 8 million at June 30, 2020, respecuvely. The net OPERS OPEB liability/(assct)
was (83 4) million at June 30, 2021 compared to $3 million at June 30, 2020

Sce Note 8 for a further breakout of pavroll and other habilies. Notes 9 and 10 for detmled
information about the University 's debt. Note 12 for mformation on long-term habihities. and Note
13 for information on emplovee benelit plans

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY
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Net Position

Net position represents the residual interest in the Umiversity's assets aller deferred outllows of
resources are added. and lLabiliies and deferred intlows of resources are deducted  The
reconciliaion below presents the University’s total net position removing the impact of the

deferred inflows and outflows relating to p OPEB as presented in the § of Net

Pesition
As Restated
June 30,2022 June 30,2021 June 30,2020
Total Net Pasition $ HLI92TR § I260R1RI2 § SL202527
Add

Deferred mnflows of resources related to penswn/OPID M™74,114 43022835 32006240

Net pension/OPES lability 35,467,057 108 S06,450 154022246
Subtret

Deferred outlows of resources related 10 pension/OPEH (2LRIS W8 (IRS01AY)  (26.151728)

Net pension/OPEB asset (13,227.241) 86,441 (5,446,000

Total Net Position without GASHs 68 and 75 $ 0T8RG8 250021621 § 208691288

The following tables summanize the categories of net position including segregation of the
unrestricted net position relating to the impact of GASBs 68 and 75

As Restated
June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Net mvestment m eapital assets. net of related debt § ISTSALTIA 5 ISA0H0.MS 8 4TIS2TH
Restrcted, nonexpendable - endowments 5755537 5,674,500 554,500
Restncted, expendable - glls, grants, and student bianc 11,587 908 22610.101 23804159
Unrestricted (without GASBs 68 and 75) 45,480,645 65687,671 28,97 570
GASBs 68and 75 (ORIU8.S80) (123610811 (153 KRTSR)
Total Net Position $ 14149378 § 126381812 §  51.200.527

Overall, the University s total net position increased $15 7 mullion or 12 5% from $126 4 million
atJune 30, 2021 10 $142 1 million at June 30, 2022 This resulted from an excess of revenues over
cxpenses and includes a §1.5 million increase in the net amount invested m capital assets, a $9
aullion increase in restncted net position. a $20:2 million decrease in unrestnicted net position
excluding the impact of GASBs 68 and 75. and a $25 4 mullion increase n unresineted net position
attnbuted to the impact of GASBs 68 and 75

Overall, the University s total net position increased $75 2 million or 147 8% from $51 2 million
at June 30, 2020 to $126 5 nullion at June 30, 2021 This resulted from an excess of revenucs over
cxpenses and includes an $8 7 milhion increase in the net amount invested in capital assets. a S1
mllion decrease in restricted net position. a $36 7 million increase in unrestnicted net posiion
excluding the impact of GASBs 68 and 75. and a $30 8 mullion increase i unrestricted net posiion
attnibuted to the impact of GASBs 68 and 738

The net investment in capital asscts consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciaton and
deferred outflows of resources relating to bond refunding reduced by the outstanding balance of
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bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attnbutable to the acquisition, construction. or
improvement of those assets. The increase of $1.5 mullion from fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year
2022 was duc to net capital additions of $13.4 million. an increase n outstanding debi of $2 9
mullion and current year depreciation and amortization of $14.8 nullion  Outstanding debt was
$68.9 million at June 30, 2022 compared to $71 8 million at June 30, 2021 §

The increasc of $8 7 milhion in net investment and capital asscts from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal
year 2021 was due to net capital additions of $20.3 millien. a $2 5 million decrease in outstanding
debt and current vear deprecianion and amortization of $14. 1 mullion Ouistanding debt was $71 8
million at June 30, 2021 compared to $74 3 mullion at June 30. 2020

Restnicted. non-expendable net position consists primanly of endowment funds held by the
University. Changes in this category are dnven by additions or deductions to corpus

Restricted. expendable net position 1s subject to externally imposed restrictions govermng their
us¢ Changes m this category are due to the timing of revenues and expenses in funds provided
by donors and grantors  The following table summarizes restricted. expendable net position at

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
3

CGafts. grants. and contracts § 26981009 26854723 § 18406182
COVID-19 rebef funds 45733 (9.104 (1079230
Plint funds 4294 855 4,714,765 6,685,905
Other 266371 145474 (2UB.658)

Total Net Position S 31587008 §  22610.001 $ 238159

Gifts. grants and contracts include grants and sponsored programs, scholarship donations and
program support. and undistnbuted and distributed but unspent investment eamings on University
endowment funds COVID-19 relicf funds include funds authonized through the Coronavirus Aid
Relicl, and Economic Secunty (CARES) Act. the Coronavirus Rehiel & Recovery Supplemental
Appropriations Act (CRRSAA), and the American Rescue Plan Actof 2021 Plant funds primanly
include donations for construction or renovation projects. Other includes non-endowed restnicted
gifts designated by management to function similar to an endowment fund and gifis established
for loan programs for students

Total restricted expendable net position was $31 6 million at June 30, compared to $22 6
million at June 20. 2021, an overall increase of $9 million or 11% Overall Gifts grants and
contracts remained {lat due to a combination of a $2 4 mullion increase in gifts fund balances and
a $2 million decrease in undistnbuted investment carnings on Umiversity endowments resulting
from an unfavorable mvestment emiirenment  COVID-19 rehef funds increased $9 2 million
primanly due to the recognion of the $9.3 mullion auributed to HEERF 111 funds that were
expensed n fiscal year 2021 but not reimbursable unul fiscal vear 2022 Overall plant funds
remaned flat

Total restricted expendable net pasition was $22 6 million at June 30, 2021 compared o $23 §
million at June 30, 2020. an overall decrease of $1.2 mullion or 3% Gifts. grants and contracts
mcreased S8 4 million pnmarily due to $4 1 mullion in unspent funds received for workforce
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development and energy storage traming, $2.9 mullion increase in undistributed investment
carmngs on University endowments due to a favorable investment environment, and $0 6 million
wn undistnibuted emergency COVID-19 funds recewved from YSUF duning fiscal vear 2021

COVID-19 Reliefl funds decreased $8 mullion primarily duc to tming differcnces between the
recognition of revenue and expenses A decrease of $93 mullion was atnbuted to HEERF 111
mstitutional portion allowable uses that were not reimbursable until fiscal year 2022 when the
HEERF [I1 Financial Asd funds were disbursed combined wath an increase of $1 1 mullion due to
fiscal vear 2020 expenses that were not reimbursable until July 2020 when the Ohio Department
of Higher Education granted emergency relief in the form of Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) in
fiscal year 2021

Plant funds increased $2 million pnmanly due to a S1.1 mullion decrease in capital gifts mtemally
set aside for debt senvice and a $0.5 mullion capital gift ransferred to YSUF at the request of the
donor

Unrestricted net position is not subject to extermnally imposed restrictions and is designated for
future operauons. plant construction and mamtenance, and debt service The following table
summarizes unrestricted net position at

June 30,2022 June 30,2021 June 30, 2020
Opemtng and designated funds s 22651471 L s R6IR 086

Operating reserves 37982 7

Plnt funds 13968 673 12572678

Loan funds 22519 2519 22188

Total without GASBs 68 and 75 315,480 615 65687671 2R K70

GASE 68 (Pensaon fund) (9T627.050) (115030373 (92E7L116)

GASH 75 (OVEB fund) (571,535 (RE09.438) A617682)
Total Unrestncted Net Position s (52717.041)  § (579501300 S (125I8RREX)

Total unrestricted net position was (352 7) millon at June 30, 2022 compared to ($57 9) million
at June 30, 2021. The mcrease of $5.2 nullion from fiscal vear 2021 to fiscal vear 2022 reflects
an excess of revenues over expenses duning fiscal year 2022 from noncapital actvity Total
unrestricted net position without funds relating to pension/OPEB decreased $20 2 mullion whereas
the funds relating to pension /OPEB increased $235 4 million

The overall decrease of $20 2 million unrestncted net position excluding GASBs 68 and 75 was
due 10 a combination of a decrease of $21.5 nullion in operating and designated funds and an
mncrease of $1 3 million in plant funds. The $21.5 million decrcase in operating and destgnated
funds was pnimanly dug to a decrease in the fair market value of investments at June 30, 2022 as
compared to June 30. 2021 due to an unfavorable market environment and planned utilization of
onc time funds to support the fiscal year 2022 operating budgets
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The GASB 68 (Pension) fund increased $17 4 mullion from (S115) million at June 30, 2021 to
($97 6) mullion at June 30, 2022, whereas the GASB 75 (OPEB) fund increased $8 million from
($8 6) million at June 30, 2021 to (S 6) nullion at June 3 2.

Total unrestricted net position was (357 9) million at June 30, 2021 compared to ($125 4) million
at Junc 30. 2020 The increase of $67 5 mullion {rom fiscal vear 2020 to fiscal vear 2021 reflects
an excess of revenues over expenses dunng fiscal year 2021 from noncapital acuvity. Total
unrestricted net position without funds relating to pension/OPEB increased $36.7 million whereas
the funds relaung to pension/OPEB increased $30.6 million

The overall increase of $36.7 nullion unrestncted net position excluding GASBs 68 and 75 was
duc to a combination of the impact of strategic utihization of the COVID-19 rehef funds,
conservative operating budgets 1o control spending in an uncertain environment. and a favorable
mvestment environment

The fiscal year end operating fund balances increased $11.1 million due to the uulizaton of $7.8
million of COVID-19 relief funds, including defraying $3 4 million in payroll expenses with
COVID-19 rehief funds. recovery of $1 0 million of indirect costs. $1.8 mullion resulting from the
umpact of student balances discharged in fiscal year 2022 (bad debt credit), and $0.7 mullion
reimbursement for lost revenue due to student account adjustments. as well as $3 3 million n
restored state share of instruction funding

Also, $10.1 nullion of COVID-19 relief funds were used to reimburse the University for $28
milhon in lost revenues and eligible expenses incurred duning fiscal year 2020 and $7 3 million
for fiscal year 2021 lost revenue. These funds were designated to be used for COVID-19 projects
and to fulfill the fiscal vear 2022 operaung budget plan

Other mcreases include $83 mulhion increase i the fund designated to record unrcalized
investment income which 1s not spendable according to board policy, $2 5 nullion increase in the
sick leave conversion fund to fund the sick leave hability, $1.9 million increase in funds st aside
for open purchase orders. and $1 million merease i the long-term operating reserve fund

The GASB 68 (Pension) fund increased $4.9 nullion from (S119.9) million at June 30, 2020 to
($113) nullion at June 30, 2021, whereas the GASB 75 (OPEB) fund increased $26 million from
($34.6) million at June 30, 2020 to (58 6) million at June 30, 2021

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

These statements present the operating results and the non-operating revenues and expenses of the
University.  Annual State appropriations, while budgeted for operations. are considered non-
operating revenues according to generally accepted accounting pnnciples. Pell grants dispersed
to students and scholarships supported by restncted gifls are considered operating expenses:
whereas the revenues supporting the expenses are considered nonoperating
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A summary of revenues. expenses, and changes i net position follows

As Restated
June 30,2022 June 30,2021 Junc 30,2020

Openating Revenues

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY
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Overall, the University’s total revenues decreased $26.2 mullion or 11% between fiscal year 2021
and fiscal year 2022 from $244 2 million to $218 million

Net twition, fees and other student charges decreased $2 9 million or 4% from fiscal vear 2021 to
fiscal vear 2022 This was due to combination of a $4. 1 million decrease in gross tuition. the result
of ncreased tution and fees and decreased enrollment and a $1 2 million decrease in scholarship
allowance  Gross tuition and fees were S104.9 mullion in fiscal year 2022 compared to $109
mullion in fiscal year 2021, whereas scholarship allowance was 325 5 million and $26.7 mllion,
respectively. Gifts. grants and contracts revenue decreased $6.1 million or 12% from fiscal vear
2021 to fiscal year 2022, pnmanly due to a combinaton of a $ 8 million increase in gifts. a$19
million increase in non-capital lederal grants and contracts activity, a $3 8 million decrease in
federal capital grant activity related to the construction of the Excellence Traming Center, a $3.6
million decrease in a private grants for workforce development and energy storage training and a
£1.4 million decrease in Pell grants duc to decreased enrollment State appropriations mereased
shghtly from fiscal vear 2021 to fiscal vear 2022, Federal appropnations totaled increased $8 3
million or 33% from $25 nullion in fiscal year 2021 to $32.2 mullion 1n fiscal vear 2022, The
£32.2 million in fiscal year 2022 included $15 3 million of Higher Education Emergency Relicf
Funds (HEERF) Student Aid. $17 3 mullion HEERF Institutional Portion and $ 6 mullion in
Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF), whereas the $25 million i fiscal year 2021 included $7 2 millien
HEERF Student Aid. $11.9 million Institutional Portion $3.7 CRF and $ 2 million 1n other grant
revenue for the University's radio staon. Auxahary enterpnises revenue incrcased $2 4 nullion or
18% from fiscal year 2021 1o fiscal year 2022 pnmanly due to mereased  Intercollegiate Athleue
revenue including $ 7 million in football guarantees and $ & million in NCAA revenue sharing

State capital appropriations decreased $6.3 million or 65% from fiscal vear 2021 to fiscal year
2022 due to decreased activity on capital projects funded with state capital dollars. pnmanly the
Excellence Training Center Investment income decreased $21.1 nullion or 133% from fiscal year
2021 10 fiscal year 2022 due to significant unrealized losses resulung from an unfavorable
environment

Overall, the University s total revenues increased $39 4 nulhion between fiscal vear 2020 and fiscal
vear 2021 from $204 8 mullion to $244 2 million or 19.2%,

Net tmuon, fees and other student charges increased $1 aullion or 1 2% from fiscal year 2020 1o
fiscal vear 2021 This was duc 1o a combination of a $1.9 million decrease i gross tuition. the
result of increased tuttion and fees and decreased enrollment and a $2.9 million decrease i the
scholarship allowance. Gross tuition and fees were $109 million i fiseal year 2021 compared to
$110.9 million in fiscal year 2020, whercas scholarship allowance was $26.7 million and $29 6
million, respeetively. Gilts, grants, and contracts increased $5. 1 million or 10.9% from fiscal vear
2020 to fiscal vear 2021 primanly due 1o a combination of an increase in pnivate grants activity,
including $4.3 million received from General Motors, LLC for workforce development and energy
storage training, $4.2 million in federal capital grant funding from the Economic Development
Agency for a portion of the construction of the Excellence Trammng Center, and a decrease in Pell
grants due 1o decreased enrollment. State appropnations increased $1.8 million or 4 4% from
fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021 due to fiscal year 2020 reflecung a reduction of $1.7 million
in State support due to the impact of COVID-19  Federal appropriations increased $18 9 million
or 311.9% from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal vear 2021 due to the continuance of the COVID-19
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Net tution, feex and other student charges s 2052 $ BL2775EY 8 81330058

Auslry enterpnses 15,700,492 17,060,256

Grants and contracts 14,202,141

Cxher 3191121 i 8 X
Total Operatmg Revenues [IERTTETS 115248613 113,549,729
Operating Expenses 200,831,632 165,297 531 208,208,708
Operating Loss (88.047826) (50048.918) 94.558,979)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expensex)

State appropriatans TR 11,927,035 4208994

Fedeml appropriations 33,228,720 UIT606K 6,063,592

Gaits. gramts. and contracts 075,504 29868317 SLS13.479

Investment mcome £7.367.959) 9,629 2555860

(nher L3001 L 430) (3461407}
Net Nonopemting Revenues 97,971,798 10154619 TRT61.518
Cain (Lavss) Betire Cxher Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 9,925972 60,105,701 (15.797461)
(xher Revenues, Expenses, and Changes

State capital appropriations 3,023,039 9,345,513 5,186,305

Capital grants and gifts 284,595 6,387,877 3,274,660

Other 26,1400 (519.902) 72164
Total Other Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 5841404 15,213,508 H8.533.129
Change m Net Positon 15767466 75319209 (1.264.332)
Net Pasition at Beginning of the Year 126,381,812 51202527 S8.466,559
Adpustient for Change n Accounting Principle - (139.924) -

126381812 510626403 58,466,859

Net Position at End of the Year $ 142149278 S 126381812 § 51.202.527

Revenues

Followng 1s a recap of revenucs by source (operating, non-operating. and other sources). which
were used 1o fund the University's activaties for the vears ended

June 30, 2022 June 30,2021 June 30, 2020

Net wition, fees, and other student charges $ T.392082 $ B22775R3 3 BL3I30OR
CGatts. grants and contrcts 46,122,330 52,198,467 47084307
Stale approprations AATRAM 420899
Fedeml appropriations 332280 6,063,592
Auslary enterpnses 15700492 17,060,256
Crher reveaue 3,491 536 4,420,799 3422390
State capral spproprations 9,345,533 3,186,305
tnresty mcome 2.555.860

Total Revenues $ 204.792.762

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.)

pandemic declared on March 11, 2020 through fiscal vear 2021 and the uming of COVID-19 rehef
funds awarded and expended.  Federal appropnations m fiscal year 2021 totaled $25 million.
including $19.1 million of Higher Education Emergency Rehief Funds (HEERF). $5.7 million of
Coronavirus Reliel Funds (CRF). and $0 2 million tn other grant revenue for the University s radio
station.  Auxiliary enterpnses revenue decreased 83 8 million or 22% from fiscal year 2020 to
fiscal year 2021 pnmanly duc to the impact of COVID-19 on auxiliary operations  Investment
income decreased $11.2 mullion or 439.1% from fiscal vear 2020 to fiscal year 2021 due to
significant realized gains resulting from a favorable environment, and State capital appropriations
nereased $4 2 million or 80.2% primanly duc to increased activity on capital projects funded with
state caputal dollars, pnmanly the Excellence Traiming Center

See Note 16 for more information about the COVID-19 Pandemic

Expenses

Operating expenses can be displayed by cither functional classificauon or natural classification
The functional classification can be found on the Statements of Revenues. Expenses. and Changes
in Net Position  The Umiversity has no control over the pension/OPEB expenses attributed to the
implementations of GASBs 68 and 75, therefore. these expenses are segregated for presentation
purposes

Following 1s a recap of total operating ¢

penses by natural classification

June 30,2022 June 30,2021  June 30, 2020

Conpensation $120317.543  $ 110767229 § 120288141
Operations 43431208 41,637,982
Scholarships 25.269.042
Depreciaton and amonization 14,105,532 14,098 787
Operating expenses Withaut GASHs 68 and 78 sccrualy 225074887 10616478 203203952
GASH 68 pension expense aceruals (17.303.322) (4.830.743) 1AT7.838
GASH 75 OPiJ3 eypenso accrual (ROITH03) _ (26,008.204) 1437415
Total operating expenses S 200533612 S 165207531 8 JOR20R TR

r
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Following is a recap of total operating expenses by functional classification excluding the impact
of GASBs 68, and 75

June 30,2022 Jung 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Instruction $ 65791493 $ LI IEY & 6850749
Research 1,265,810 o020
Public service 6,461 (0 5564742
Acadenmc support 15654 868 17,336,884
Student services 120,792 11,964,319
Institutional suppor BLELSE SN 12 Ao 19,324 042
Operation and mamntenance of plant 21,357 439 17803 4584
Scholarshps 15,101,587
Auxliary enterprises 24930934 20,594,661
Depreciation and amonuaton 14770109 14,105,532

Totaloperating expenscs $ 215,474 857 § 106 146,478 $ 203 291 952

Excluding the impact of the pension and OPEB accruals. total operaung expenses increased
$29 8 mullion or 15% from $196 1 million dunng fiscal year 2021 to $226 nulhon dunng fiscal
vear 2022, The increase was duc to increases of $9 5 million in compensation. $12 3 million in
operations. and 87 2 million in scholarships

Overall compensation increased $9 5 million or %% from $110.8 million  fiscal vear 2021 o
$120.3 million in fiscal vear 2022 Salanes and wages increased $5 8 million or 7 1% from $81 3
million in fiscal vear 2021 to $87 3 mullion mn fiscal vear 2022, whercas fmnge benefits ncreased
$3.7 mullion or 12 8% from $29 3 nullion n fiscal vear 2021 to $33 mullion in fiscal vear 2022
Overall fringe benefits as a percentage of salaries and wages was 37 8% n fiscal year 2022
compared to 35 9% in fiscal year 2021. The overall increase reflects planned actions including the
call back of temporany layofTs. restoration of pay reductions, hiting of a hunng freeze and the
cessauon of furloughs made during fiscal year duc to COVID-19  [n addition, fiscal year 2022
reflects a voluntary scparation or retirement program for faculty as part of an academic
reorganization plan

Operations increased $12 3 million or 28% from $43 4 mullion in fiscal year 2021 to $55 8 mullion
in fiscal year 2022 The overall inerease reflects planned actions as the Umiversity returns to pre
COVID-19 level acuvaty

A large portion of aid 1s classified as scholarship allowance on the Statement of Revenues.
Expenses and Changes in Net Position. Overall. the University disbursed $60.5 million to students
in fiscal year 2022 compared to $54 5 million in fiscal vear 2021, an increase of $6 million. This
net increase includes a $1.4 million decrease i federal Pell grants and an $8. 1 million increase m
federal aid to students from HEERF funds HERRF fund disbursements totaled $15 3 million in
fiscal year 2022 compared to $7.2 million in fiscal vear 2021

Pension expense attributed to GASB 68 deereased $12 .6 million from (84 8) million in year 2021
10 ($17 4) million n fiscal year 2022, whercas OPEB expense attributed to GASB 75 increased
S18 million from ($26) million in fiscal vear 2021 to ($8) mullion 1s fiscal year 2022 The $12 6
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million decrease i pension expense was duc to a $105 million decrease i the STRS Ohio plan
and a $2 1 million decrcase m the OPERS plan. The $18 mullion increase n OPEB expense was
duc 1o an increase in the OPERS plan. These expenses are the result of changes i the deferred
outflows/inflows and hiabilities related to pension/OPEB. The University has no control over the
factors affecting these changes

Excluding the impact of the pension and OPEB aceruals. total operating expenses deereased 7.2
mullion or 3.5% from $203 3 million during fiscal year 2020 10 $196 1 million during fiscal year
2021 This net decrease was due to decreases of $9.5 mallion in compensation, $0 2 million in
operations. offsct by a $2 5 nullion increase in scholarships

Overall compensation decreased $9.5 million or 7 %% from $120 3 million in fiscal year 2020 1o
$110.8 million in fiscal year 2021 Salarics and wages decreased $7 5 mullion or 8 4% from $89
million in fiscal year 2020 to $81 5 mullion in fiscal year 2021, whereas nnge benefits decreased
$2 million from $31 3 in fiscal year 2020 to $29 3 million in fiscal year 2021 Overall fninge
benefits as a percentage of salaries and wages was 35.9%6 in fiscal year 2021 compared to 35 1%
in fiscal year 2020 The overall decrease was the result of planned actions due to COVID-19,
including temporary and p lavolls. pay red . furlough demic reorganization.
elimination of an admimistrative division. and a hinng freezc dunng fiscal vear 2021

Operations remaned relatively flat at $43 4 mullion in fiscal year 2021 compared 1o $43 6 million
in fiscal year 2020 This was due to the combination of strategic and across the board reducuons
to operating budgets campus wide. and utilization of COVID-19 rchief funds  Approxmaiely
$11.3 million s COVID-19 rehief funds were utilized for operations in fiscal year 2021 including
expenses for campus safety, equipment and software to enable distance leaming and remote
working. campus wide Wi-Fi upgrades. modifications of classrooms. and expenses associated with
quarantined students. This compares to $0 6 mullion of COVID-19 rehief funds utilized in fiscal
vear 2020,

A large portion of ad is classified as scholarship allowance on the Statement of Revenues
Expenscs and Changes in Net Position. Overall, the amount of aid disbursed to students by the
University remained flat at $54.5 million in fiscal year 2021 compared to $34 8 million in fiscal
year 2020, This was due to a combination of a $2 million decrease in federal Pell grants, a decrease
of $2 7 million in institutional funds. and a $4 mullion increase in federal aid to students from
HEERF funds

Pension cxpense attributed 1o GASB 68 decreased 88 3 mullion from $3 5 milhon i fiscal year
2020 o ($4.8) mullion in fiscal vear 2021, whercas OPEB expense attributed to GASB 75
decreased $27.7 million from $1 4 million in fiscal vear 2020 to ($26) million in fiscal year 2021

The $8.3 million decrease in pension expense was attributed to a combination of an $8 X million
decrease in the OPERS plan offset by $0 5 million ncrease in the STRS Ohio plan The $27 4
million decrease in OPEB cxpense was atinbuted 1o a combination of a $28 8 million decrease n
the OPERS plan offset by a $1.4 million increase in the STRS Ohio plan These expenses are the
result of changes in the deferred outflows/inflows and liabilities related to pensio/OPEB - The
University has no control over the factors affecting these changes
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See Note 13 for additional information on pension plans and other post-cmplovment benefits
(OPEB) and Note 16 for more information about the COVID-19 pandemic

Total operaung and non-operating expenses for the Umiversity were $202.201, 188, $168 867,694,
and $212,057,094 in fiscal vears 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively

=
b
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Economic Factors for the Future

Lookmg to the future, management believes the University 1s well-posinoned o continue 1ts
favorable financial condition and level of excellence in service 1o students

Based on the most recent estimate provided by the Ohio Department of Higher Education, State
Sharc of Instruction (SS1) funding for the University for fiscal vear 2023 is expected to be 4 5%
greater than dunng fiscal vear 2022, This increase is partially attnbutable to a roughly 1% increase
n the total statewide S51 appropriation that was enacted in the state of Ohio’s operating budget
legislation for the fiscal vear 2022-fiscal vear 2023 biennium  The University s increase in 551
funding is also driven by improved performance with respect to student success outcomes,
underscored by a 14% improvement in the Umversity s six-vear graduation rate between 2014 and
2021 SSI formula allocations continue to be tied to student success, with degrees awarded and
course completions serving as the primary dnvers of SSI funding  Datasets used in the formula
are based on a three-year rolling average and are weighted to take into account varnous at-nisk
student charactenstics  The SSI formula continues to factor in discipling and program costs and
enrollment levels

praph reflects six years actual data for State Appropnations plus the budgeted
vear 2023

The fallowing
amount for fisc

State Appropriatinns
Fiscal Years 2017 through 2023

47,000 000

$44,809 500

$44.000 800

$144,000 008

£4),000 800

$42.000 900

$41,000 000

$40,000 000

519,000 800
FY 2017 P eny Fy 2019 FY 2020 Py 2o e FY 30
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Fall Semester Enrollment Trends
2013 through 2022

The following graph refleets nine vears of actual data for Fall enrollment trends plus the 14 day
prehminary enrollment for Fall 2022
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Fall 2022 cnrollments are 4% lower than the prior Fall semester on a full-ime cquivalency (FTE)
basis Following a five-vear decline in FTE enrollments between Fall 2011 and 2015, YSU
achieved three vears of enrollment stability between Fall 2016 and Fall 2018 before these four
consecutive setbacks. The number of the University s new incoming student enrollments for Fall
2022 was unvarving over Fall 2021, which represents progress. due to growth of new incoming
intemational students to a certamn extent  When vou consider our faster and increased rates of
graduation for undergraduates. a 2% decline in total headcount 1s respectable. Even though a
decline in overall enrollment continued, efforts o target special populauons that helped o

counteract demographic declines and the ways the pand p d carcer path d
of students 1s balanced  Student and parent expectations are evolving and requiring dramatically
different recruitment and enrollment cs with ad, to 2 about what YSU

offers in terms of a hgh-quality education at an afferdable pnce

The number of new Honors College freshmen for Fall 2022 was 371, which represents an 24 08%
increase over Fall 2021 Honors College freshmen continuously contribute to the growth in and
sustamability of the academic qualmy of YSU's smudent bodv. The University experienced
increases in new freshman for four consecutive years between Fall 2015 and Fall 2018, a 31%
ncrease in that ume. before dropping 0.12% in Fall 2022, 10 59% in Fall 2021, and 9 35% duning
Fall 2020

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.)

Freshman GPA averages were mantained with the highest in University hustory at 3.52 despite
¥SU's shufl 1o a test optional policy for undergraduate admission over the last two years: The
impressive academic quality of our new students continues to be a point of pnde. Nearly 60%
(38 94%) of our new freshmen had a high school GPA of 3.5 or better.  Efforts to widen the
Universitv's appeal beyond its traditional footpnnt advanced for Fall 2022 wiuth financial
investment into more marketing, targeting special populations, and a continued reduction 1n out-
of-state tition. Multicultural freshman decreased slightly by 2.33% along with the number of
Ohio counties represented in the freshman class to 39 counties from 42 counties last Fall

The University's first year freshmen that were retaned to the second year increased to 77 53%
from 74.09% from last year

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION AT JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

ASSEIN
Current Assets
Cash and cwsh squyalonts
Investments
Restricted investiments
Interest rew
receivable, net
e reseivable, net
Loans reseivable., net
Inventorics
Prepaid expenses md wncarned charges
Total Curren ety

Nomcurre
Investments
Endowments and other restricted inyements
Pledges receivable, net
Loans reseivable, net
Onher nonsurrent aséts
Net OPEB asset.

i

net
Total Noncurrent Assets
Tatal Assets
DEFIRRIED OUVIFLOWS OF KESOURCES
Deferred oie flows related to pension
Deferred o fows reluted 1o OPER
Bond refunding
Total Deferred OQutNows of Resources
LLARILITIES

Ponds pay able
Notes payable
Leased liabilities
Compensated abmenies
Unearned revenue
Other Habilities
Toral Currend Li

Noucurrent Lishilities
Berds e et

Compensated shacnoes
Refundable advance
Net pension lishliny

Total Noncur
Total Liaki

DEFERRED INFLOW S OF RESOURCES
Service concesion agecments
Deferred inflaws relsted ta pensian
Deferred mflaws related 1o OPE R

Total Deferred Inflows of Ressurces

NETPOSINON
Net investment in capital assets
Restrictod nonespendable - endovments
Restricted expendable - pits, grants, snd stuknt loans
Unrestricted

1 Not Position

Sce accompany ing notes (o financial stat ements

t Liabilitien
.

fume 3031

12995087
732,941
145,904

1,484,140

Ko V60, 161

14,803,228
11554151
140,753

151 741 0

23,035,309
70,038

$4.007,063
11,030,830

14 -‘l 211

T Aub OIS

As Restated
2031

"

26292042
46,804 862
825,340
103 684
18,039,267
71T
38284
60,388
1436 024

Weu74 ins

33,145
136.603
9,480,413
20,147,643

4635278
619,194
HAI8691
3,230,000
950,444

3,755,643
12,109,512
1,500,230
5731273
670,781
108 $06 ¥30

22329.129
20,691 06
FEREEREL

186,049,345

5,674,506

22.610.101
(57,952,140}

AT

THE YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaknts
Investiments
Pledges receivable, net
Pledges reccivable for Youngstown State Univ
Prepaid expenses and uther assets
Propenty and equipment, net
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable

1 compmtments o Youngstown State Unversty
Acerued labilities and other
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Without donor restnctions
With donor restnetions
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

ot

See accompany ing notes (o financisl stater

June 30, 2022

June 30, 2021

S 1630642
106,116,478
5170262
1982190

L1t 165
209.391

$ LN
325195829
6604115
3118955
872,106
234011

>

318.26%. 128

$ 337036752

H 691,332 s 8,407
10,957,374 9328575
75082 81.571
9918553

159,593,219
147,002, 141

179316076
147.722.123

327,138,199

3 318260128

“

317,056,752




YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FORTHE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

OPERATING REVENUES

Taition, fess, and other stadent charges (nct of schalarship
allowance of $29.39R8 962 m 2022 and $26 671400 2021)

Federal grants and comtracts

State grants and contracts

Lacal grants and contracts

Private grants and contracts

Sales and vervjcey

Ausiliary eaterprsss

Cnber operating revenues
Tatal Operating Revenues

Publis service
Acadernic suppont
Stident services
Istitutional sepport
Operation sad maintens
Scholarships
Ausiliary caterpses
Depresiation sad amortication
Tutal Operating Exprases
Operating Las

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State sppropristions
Federal sppropristions
Federal grants
Private gifts

< af plant

79.392092
[RITESS
3478067

138000
1,400,618
108, 10%
700,492

13,624,004
EATTREC]

12624816
10137813
X -1
[RAELE LTS
13,103 587
pat] RR L

14771009

s Reatatd
Junc 302

ERRIRATE
1436371
6,093,116
60,184
s 80
o227

13,264,789

6,200,482

15.510.64%

14,104,432

Unrestncted mvestment (lons) income, net of myevtment expenss
Restricted investmant (ks ) incoms, aet of investment expente

Interet on capital aset-related debdt
Other nonoperating 1\ snuc, nst
Net Nomopreating Revenures

T
[ERS R A
19633766
13421828

(T916T)
SN0 60

IRGERITY

Gain Hefore Other Revenues, Euproases, and Changes

OTHER REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
State capital sppropristions
Capital grants and gifls
Crher revenuc (expense). net
Total Other Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
Change In Net Position

NET POSITION

# Pasition at Beginning of the Year

juwstmment for Change in Acrounting Principle
Net Position at Beginning of the Year, as rea
+ Position at End of the Year

Sez accompanying netes ko finsncial statements

DsaTT

1023059
144 598

(26,140}
(TR

15767466

il

3,350.93%
248108

110184019

0,108,701

PRITREE]
0387477
[EIRALIN]
[EETER
ETED

209

41,202,927

THE YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Cash Fluws from Operating \ctivities
Student wition and fees
Federal. state. and local grants and contracts
Private grants and contracts
Sales and services of educational and vther departmental activitics
Pavments to supplicrs
Pasments to employees
Paymcats fur benctits
Pavments for scholarships
Direct lending receipts
Direst lending dishursements
Onher receipts, net
Total Cash Flows Used In Operating Activities

Cash Flaws from Noncapital Financing Activities
Federal grants
Federal educational appropriations
State educational appropriations
Private gifts
Other aonoperating expenses
Student loans tssued
Student luans collected
Student loan interest and fees collected
Tutal Cash Flaws Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale of mvestments
Purchase of investments
Intcrest on investments
1 Cach Flows Provided by Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

June 30. 2022

197.726 709

109.019 757

(7.410.269)

June 30, 2021

$ R2541.704
ERIRIES

12 4823170
16,849,090 14.258,760
(35.048.692) (44.106.705)
(B7.027.622) (81 2y
(31,188.169) (29.799.492)
(33.333.319) (27.821 838
46925 469 $0.679.162
(47.247.482) (50,686 373)
2711442 3448 007

(69813.191)

15.199.219 16.710.007

15,357,831 25728512
44ATR A 43927038
13,503,303 12946388
298473 9,008

- 550

263918 194,749
18.567 44,0460

99 867 286

36.264 869
(29655 108)

10,769 589
LIRS0 09))
13.787.218

(K00, $0%) 5559717

State capital appropriations

Private capital gilts and grants

Purchase of capital assets

Principal payments on capatal debt

Honds pavable procesds

202279
6,502,334

(11,627,896)
(2472.573)

286375

10,699 450
2,150,743

(399%.647)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT
Contributiia
Enexmant camings
St realized gain v sale of myements
unrealized uhanga i bong-term sy ents
et ansenw relensed froem restristions
TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORY

EXFENSES
Drsrbtion 1 Youmgatonn Srate Uiy
S mholunhopa ind cthet programs
Admunisrative expenditires
TOTAL EXFENSES

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

Net Awets - Brghuning of Vrar
Net Aswets - End of Vear

REVENUES, CAINS, AND OTHER SUTPORT

Het anaces relcascd fram rewtni tions
TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT

EXPEXSES

Admmsirative o
TOT AL EXFENSES

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

Net Ansets - Heginning f Year
et Awsets - B of Year

Soe sccompanying moees o finansal maternents

S 1, 3

“Witheut Donor
Hastritions

s X% 1L B

1,706, 840

With Donor.
Restristions

[ERTER T

IR 84) (Ta087 v a1

5116483 11488 X

TR RF TH] PR

16561302 15361812
EXTNE

(AL a 181

175,416.07% 147732128 LM

T 5 tanwiial ETXTIRC)

Totat

10080558
pAB RIS

[[EDES)

LRI

54805

AT

5 ) 163

Interest paveents on capital debt

Total Cash Flows Used In Capitsl snd Relsted Financing Activities

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

(7.687.310)

2.398.346) (3,456,965}

(15.113.263)

2,805,230 20,500,548

26.202.042 5791497

-~

29.097.272 § 26202042
—_ s

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operaiing foss fo net cash used in
Gperating activitics
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for bad debts
Changes in asscts and habilitics
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and uneamed charges
Net OPEB asscts
Accounts payable
Accrued and other habilities
Uneamed revenue
Compensated shsences
Net pensica OPER liability
Deferred cutflows-peasions and OPEB
Defeered mflows-pensions and OPEB
h Flaws Used In Operafing Activities

Net

Nonicash Investing and Financing Transactions
Capital Asset Related to Leases

Sce accumpanying notes to financial statements.

In fuly 2021, the University issucd $28 063,000 in Sencs
the boad sale were used for a current refunding of the Serics

June 30, 2022

5

<

(97.726,709) S
B iy

June 30. 2021
(R8.047.826)  § (SO.048.918)

4770, 14,108,532

275900 (1.875.681)
942,29 K11,738)
4643 9025
(38,116} 351,668}
(3.740.798) (4040447
42,685 2306725
S88 444 (655,247}
(343770 TIIG
(280.855) (401,622}
(£3.039.79%) (45.515.396)
(5411913 1,750297

1 751279

69 %13.191)
P ey

$ 1943399

2021 General Receipts bonds. The proceeds fom
10 General Receipts boads and Series 2011

General Receipts bonds. resulfmg n a retirement of these bonds for $20.305.000 and $13.185.000 respectively

Sce Note 9 [or further discussion on this noa-cash transaction
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Organization and Basis of Presentation

Youngstown State Umversity (the University or YSU) s a coeducational, degree granting state-
assisted metropolitan university and was established by the General Assembly of the State of Ohio
in 1967 The University is a component unit of the State of Ohio. The University provides a wide
range of opportunitics in higher education primanly to residents in northeastern Ohio and westem
Pennsylvania The University offers degrees at the undergraduate. graduate. and doctoral levels

In dance with Gov 1 A Standards Board (GASB) Statement No 14, The
Reporting I;nm\ md GASB Statement \o Gl, The .' wnancial Reporting Ennry: Omnibus. the
University’s fi I st are ded. as a discretely presented component unit, in the

State of Ohio's (State) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report  In accordance with GASB
Statement No 39, Deternumng  Whether Certain Organizations are Component  Units.
Youngstown State University Foundation's (YSUF or Foundation) financial statements are
included. as a discretely presented component umit, in the University’s financial report by
presentation of the mdividual financial statements of the entity immediately following the
University's respective GASB financial statements  See Note 13 for additional information
regarding the University's component unit

The University's financial statements have been prepared m accordance with accountng principles
generally aceepted in the United States of America as prescnibed by the GASB

As required by the GASB. resources arc classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the
following four net position calegones

s Netinvestment in capital assets — Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
outstanding principal balances of debt aunbutable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets.

s Resincted, nnm.\pcndahh. ~ Resources subject to extemnally imposed stipulaucns that they be
ly by the Ul v Such include the University s permancat

endowment l'unds

+ Restncted. expendable — Resources whose use by the University 15 subject to externally
imposed stipulations that can be Tulfilled by actions of the University pursuant to those
stipulations or that expire by the passage of ime

+ Unrestricted ~ Resources that are not subject 1o extemally imposed supulations. Unrestncied

may be d d for specific by action of management. Board of Trustees

or may otherwisc be limited by contractual agreements with cutside partics. Substantially all

unrestricted resources are designated for academic and rescarch programs and initiatives,
capital projects. and operating resenves

13
o

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
FORTHE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The panying financial st have been prepared on the accrual basis The University

reports as a business type activaty, as required by the GASB. Business type acuivities are those that
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged 1o external partics for goods or services

Change in Accountine Pnnciple - Effecuve for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2022, the University
adopted GASB Statement No 87, Leases (GASB 87)  Thus statement supersedes GASB Statement
No 62 and establishes new requirements for caleulaung and reporting the University’s lease
acuvities. The adoption of GASB 87 has been reflected as of July 1, 2020

Beginning net position as of July 1. 2020 was restated for the effects of the University 's adoption of
GASB 87 as follows

June 30, 2020

a3 Onginally GASBS? July 1,200

Reported Adoption as Restated
Cument assets § 61921355 § - $ 6121358
Noncument assets 251 793,302 248730 253842032
Total Assets NITNL6S5T 2487 35.761.387
Defemed Outthws of Resources 27.832.78) - 27812781
Current babilitics 2164070 281361 26,445,431
Noncument labikties 233574470
Total Liabiltwes ‘um T 2600195901
Deferred Inflows of Resources 32,373,740 - 32370740
Net Postion § 51202527 5 (139.924) $  SLo62a

The Statement of Net Position as of June 30. 2021 was restated for the effects of the University's
adoption of GASB 87 as follows

June 30, 2021
as Ongnally GASH ST June 30, 2021
Reported Adoption as Restated
Current assets 5 MOTIARS 3 - 074
Noneument assets 263,455,415 1.576.158 263,031,793
Total Assets 157,529.919 1,576,158 150,106,277
Deferred Outtlows of Resources 12957609 - 19.957,699
Cusrent lubilities 0922245 236,785 27,159,000
Noncurrent Labilitics 1479497
Total Liabilities 171 339,
Deferred Inflows of Resources 43242815 - 41242815
Net Position $ 126521736 $  uwed § 126381812
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MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Cash Equvalents - The University considers all hughly liquid mvestiments with an onginal matunty
of three months or less to be cash equivalents  Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which
approxamates fair value and excludes amounts restricted by board designation or whose use is
limited

Investments — Investments are reported at far value based on quoted market prices Changes
unrealized pains (losses) on the carrving value of investments are reported as a component of
investment income in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. Restricted
investments are compnsed of endowment corpus and related spending funds  Alemauve
investments are generally less liquid than publicly traded sccuntics. These alternative investments
are intended 1o reduce market sk, credit nsk and interest rate nsk The University believes the
carrving amounts of these holdings (net asset values) are reasonable estmates of the fair values as
of year-end. Because these inyestments are not readily marketable. the estimated value is subject 1o
uncertainty. and therefore. may differ from the valuc that would have been used had a ready market
for the investment existed. Such difference could be matenal

Endowment Policy - Under Olio law set forth in the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (UPMIFA), as adopted in Ohio in 2009, the Board acts in a fiduciary capacity as trustee
of its endowment funds. UPMIFA requires that the Board exercise its fiduciary duties prudently and
consider both the chantable purposes and needs of the University and the purposes of the specific
endowment regarding current expenditures and preservation of the purchasing power of the funds
The Umiversity Endowment Fund consists of 90 named funds.  Each named fund s assigned a
number of shares in the University Endowment Fund based on the value of the gifts to that named
fund The University's endowment spending policy states that annual distributions each fiscal vear
are set 1o 5% of the twelve-quarter average of the market value for the preceding twelve calendar
quarters. In calculating the twelve-quarter average. census dates of March 31, Junce 30, September
30, and December 31 for the previous three vears shall be used  Distnbutions greater than the
caleulated amount require written justification and Board of Trustees” approval

Accounts Receivable -~ Accounts receivable consist of transactions relating to twition and fees.
auxiliary enterpnise sales, grants and contracts, and miscellancous sales and senvices  Accounts
reccivable are recorded net of allowance for uncollectible amounts

Pledges Receivable - The Umiversity has a development services agreement with the Foundauon
As part of the agreement, the majonty of new pledges are recorded by the Foundation and payments
on University pledges are collected by the Foundation and remutted to the University on a monthly
basis Prior to the agreement, the University recerved pledges and bequests of financial support from
corporaucns, foundations, and individuals  Revenue i1s recognized when a gift represenung an
unconditional promise to pay 1s received and all eligibility requirements have been met In the
absence of a conditional pledge. revenue 15 recogmized when the gilt is received  Pledges are
recorded net of an allowance for uncollecible amounts and are discounted to net present value

nventonies - Inventonces are stated at the lower of cost or fair value

4

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Capital Asscts - Capital asscts are stated at cost or acquisition value at date of gift Infrastructure
assets are included in the financial statements and are depreciated. The University s capitalization
hreshold for fi ¢, and vehicles 1s $5.000. and for buildings. bulldmg, improvements.
and improv: ements other than bwldings 15 $100,000 Land 1s capitalized regardless of cost  Library
purchases arc excluded from capitalization and expensed as purchased

Depreciation (including amortization of leased assets) is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of the asset and 15 not allocated to the functional expenditure categones
Historical collections, including assets that are held for public exhibiton. educauon, or research in
Turtherance of public service, which are protected and preserved. are not depreciated

When capital assets are sold, or otherwise disposed of, the carmying value of such assets and any
accumulated depreciation is removed from asset accounts and the net investment in capital assets
The costs of normal mantenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the capital assct or
matenally extend the capital asset’s life arc expensed when incurred  Esumated hves also apply to
lcased assets, which are amortized over the lesser of the estimated useful life of each class of capital
assets or the lease term using the straight-line method  Estimated lives are as follows

Clasalication Exumated Lilg
Buildings 50 years
Improvements to buildings 1010 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 15 years
Maveable equipment, fumiture and vehicles 310 20 veurs

Uneamed Revenue - Uncarned revenue includes tuition and fee revenues billed or received prior to
the end of the current fiscal year end, but related to the penod after the current fiscal year  Also
included are amounts received from grants and contract sponsors that have not vet been earned and
other resources received before the chigibility requirements are met

Compensated Absences ~ Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave benefits are recorded as
required by the GASB. The University uses the temunation method to accrue sick leave
compensated absences on the Statement of Net Position  University employees earn vacation and
sick leave benefits based, in part, on length of service. Vacation pay is fully vested when earned
Upon separation [rom service. employees are paid accumulated vacation and sick pay based upon
the nature of separation (death, retirement, or ternunation). Certain hmitations have been placed on
the hours of vacation and sick leave that employees may accumulate and carry over for payment at
death, retirement. or termanation. Unused hours exceeding these limitations are forfeited

Refundable Advances from Govemment for Federal Loans - Funds provided by the United States
government under the Federal Perkins Loan program are loaned to qualificd students and re-loancd
after collections These funds are ulumately refundable to the govemment and, therefore, are
recorded as a hability m the accompanving financial statements  Congress did not renew the
program after September 30, 2017 and no disbursements were permitted afier June 30, 2018

Deflerred Outflows of Resources - In addition to asscts, the statement of linancial position repornts a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement clement,
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applics to future periods
and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses) untl then The University
reports deferred outflows of resources for refunding of bonds and certan pension-related and OPEB-
related amounts. including changes in expected and acal expenience, changes in assumptions.
change in proportionate sharc of contribution and certain contributions made to the plan subscquent
to the measurement date See Note 13 for more detailed information on the pension-related and
OPEB-related amounts

Deferred Inflow of Resources — In addition to habihties, the statement of financial position reports
a separate section for deferred flows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows ol resources. represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then: The University reports
deferred inflows of r for service concession arrangements and certain pension-related and
OPEB-related amounts. ncluding changes m expected and actual expenence. changes m
assumptions. and the difference between projected and actual carnings of the plan’s investments
See Note 13 for more detailed information on the pension-related and OPEB-related amounts.

Service Concession Arrangements - Service co arr: ts consist of an ag| with
a food service provider and an agreement with a beverage company for exclusive pouring nghts
Funds received are contingent upon utilization of services over a specified tme penod and are
amortized over the term of the contract arrangement. Unamortized amounts are reflected as deferred
nflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position

Pensions - For purposes of measuning the net pension hability. deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense. information about the
fiductary net positions of the State Teachers Retrement System of Chio (STRS Ohio) and the Ohio
Public Employces Retirement System (OPERS) Pension Plans and additions to/deductions from
STRS Ohio’s/OPERS’ fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by STRS Olie/OPERS. STRS Ohio/OPERS use the cconomic resources measurement
focus and the full accrual basis of accounting Contribution revenue 1s recorded as contnbutions are
duc. pursuant to legal requirements  Benelit payments (including refunds of emplovee
contributions) arc recogmized as expense when duc and payable in accordance with the benefit terms
Investments are reported at fair value

ther Postemplovment Benefit Costs — For purposes of measuring the net other postemployment
benefit (OPEB) asset/liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related 10 OPEB, and OPEB expensc, information about the fiduciary net positions of the Pension
Plans (STRS Ohio/OPERS) and additions to/deductions from STRS Ohio’s/OPERS” fiduciary net
positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by STRS Ohio/OPERS STRS
Ohio/OPERS use the cconomic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of
accounting. For this purpose, STRS Ohio/OPERS recognize benefit pavments when due and pavable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at [air value
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Income Taxes ~ The Internal Revenue Service has ruled that the University’s income 1s generally
exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 115 of the Intemal Revenue Code. The Umiversity
is subject to tax on unrelated business income

Measurement Focus and Financial Statement Presentation - The accompanying financial statements
have been prepared using the economic resource measurement focus, operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing educational and nstructional service in connection with
the University s principal ongoing operations  The principal operating revenues include student
tuition, fees and other student charges The University also recognizes as operating revenue grants
classified as exchange transactions and auxiliary activities  Operating expenses include educational
costs, admimistraiive expenses and depreciation on capital assets  All revenues and expenses not
mectung this defimtion including State and Federal appropriations are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses

Scholarship Allowances and Student Awd — Tuition, fecs, and other student charges are reflected net
of scholarship allowances in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses. and Changes in Net Position
Certan aid (such as loans and lunds awarded to students by third parties) is accounted for as a third-
party pavment (credited to the student’s account as if the student made the pavment) All other aid
is reflected in the financial statements as operating expenses, or scholarship allowances. which
reduce revenues. The amount reported as operating expense represents the portion of aid that was
provided to the student in the form of cash. Scholarship allowances represent the portion of aid
provided to the student in the form of reduced tuition

Release of Restricted Funds — When an expense 15 incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted resources are available. 1t is the University's policy to apply restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as needed

Management’s Estimates - The preparation of the financial statements i conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Umited States of America requires management to
make cstimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
disclosures in the notes to financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements — In fiscal year 2022 the provisions of the following
GASB Statements became effective:

« GASB Statement No 87, Leases, issued June 2017, As a result of the adoption of GASB
Si No 93, the req; of this S are now effective for reporting peniods
beginning after June 15, 2021 The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by
govermments

= GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction
Period. 1ssued June 2018 As a result of GASB Statement No. 95, the requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning alter December 15, 2020 The objectives
of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital
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assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simphify accounting for interest
cost incwrred before the end of a construction peniod  Starting with the fiscal vear ended June
30. 2022, mterest costs associated with construction will be expensed as incurred

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, 1ssued January 2020 As a result of the adoption of
GASB Statement No. 95, the requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal vears
beginming after June 15, 2021 The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in
accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authontative literature by
addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of
certain GASB Statements

* GASB Statement No 97, Certarn Component Unit Criteria. and Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Secirion 437 Deferred Comy Plans-an fi
of GASE Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASE Statement No. 32, issued
June 2020 The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning afier June
15,2021 The primary objectives of this Statement are to increase consistency and comparability
related to the reporting of fiduciary component units: mitigate costs associated with the reporting
of certamn defined contnbution pension plans: and enhance the relevance, consistency, and
comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section
457 deferred compensation plans

Except lor the adopuion GASB 87. the above standards had no impact on the statements as a whole
Refer to Change in Accounting Principle for details on the net position impact of GASB 87

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements — As of the report date, the GASB issued the following
statements nol yet implemented by the University

« GASB Statement No. 91, Conduir Debt Obligarions, 1ssued May 20190 As a result of the
adoption of GASDB Statement No 93, the requirements of this Statement are effective for
reporting peniods beginning after December 15, 2021 The primary objectives of this Statement
are to provide a single method of reporting condwit debt obligations by 1ssuers and eliminate
diversity in practice associated with commitments extended by 1ssuers, arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations. and related note disclosures

* GASB Statement No. 9. Public-Privare and Public-Public Parmerships and Avaifabiliny
Payment Arrangements, issued March 2020, The requirements of this Statement are effecuve
for fiscal years beginning after June 13, 2022 The pnmary objective of this Statement is to
improve linancial reporting by addressing 1ssues related to public-private and public-public
partnershup arrangements

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, issued
May 2020, The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal vears beginning afier June
15, 2022, This Statement provides gmdance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements for government end users
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» GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022 1ssued April 2022, The requirements of this statement
are effective immediately, with the exception of requirements related to leases, PPPs and
SBITAs effective June 30, 2023, and the requirements related to financial guarantees and the
classification and reporting of derivative instruments effective June 30, 2024, The Statements
enhances comparability in accounting and financial reporting and improves the consistency of
authoritative literature

GASB Statement No. 100, Accownting Changes and Error Corrections-an amendment of GASB
Statement No 62, issued June 2022, The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal
vears begining aller June 135, 2023 The pnmary objective of this Statement 1s to enhance
accounting and {inancial reporting requirements for accounting changes and crror corrections to
provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for
making decisions or assessing accountability

GASB § No. 101 Comy { Absences. issued June 2022 The requirements of this
Statement are effecuve for fiscal years beginning after December 135, 2023 The objective of
this statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating

the recogmtion and measurement guidance for compensated absences

The University has not vet determined the effect these Statements will have on the University's
financial statements and disclosures

Note 2 — State and Federal Support

The Umiversity receives support from the State in the form of State appropniations and capital
appropriations.  As required by the GASB. these are reflected as non-operating revenues on the
Statement of Revenues. Expenses. and Changes in Net Position

State appropriations totaled $44.378 444 i fiscal vear 2022 compared to $43.927,035 in fiscal year
2021 The State Share of Instruction (SS1) is determined annually by the Ohio Department of Higher
Education

Caputal appropriations from the State totaled $3.023,039 in fiscal year 2022 compared to $9.345,533
m fiscal vear 2021 and included funding for equipment and the construction/major renovations of
plant facilities

Fundmg for the construction of major plant facihties on the University campus is obtained from the
issuance of revenue bonds by the Ohio Public Faciliies Commission (OPFC)

Umiversity facihties are not pledged as collateral for the revenue bonds  Instead. the bonds are
supported by a pledge of monics in the Higher Education Bond Service Fund established in the
custody of the Treasurer of State of Ohio 11 sufficient monies are not available from this fund. a
pledge exists to assess a special student fee uniformly applicable to students in state-assisted
mstitutions of ligher education throughout the State
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Qutstanding debt issued by OPFC is not included on the U Vs Stat 1L ol Net Position. In
addition, the appropnations by the General Assembly o the Ohio Department of Higher Education
for pavment of debt service are not reflected as appropniation revenue received by the University,
and the related debt service pavments are not recorded in the University 's accounts

See Note 16 for addiuonal information on funding received from the Corenavirus Aid, Reliel. and
Economic Sceurity (CARES) Act duc to the COVID-19 pandemic

Note 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

For financial stalement presentation purposes, cash i banks has been combined with the
University s cash equivalents and temporary investments

Depository funds held in the name of the Umiversity are secured by a pool of securities with a value
of at least 105% of the total value of monies on deposit at the depository bank. All collateral, both
specific and pooled. 15 held by the Federal Reserve Bank or by a designated trustee as agent for the
public depositories used by the University

Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30. 2022 and June 30. 2021 consist of the following

anz x2)

Camying Amount ST 8% 22
FDIC Insured $ 750000 5 678410
Uninsured but collateralized by pools of sceuntics

pledged by the depository banks 1263 501 21,00
Uninsured but assets held in name of YSU not

pledged as collateral clsewhere HEBNT
Bank Balance § 28 10007

The difference in carryving amount and bank balance is caused by items in transit and outstanding
checks. Deposits held in safekeeping by a bank. as trustee or escrow agent. included in cash totaled
$47.230 at Junc 30,2022 and $17.930 at June 30, 2021, which approximates market These deposits,
including mterest on the mvestments. are retained in the trust for payment of pnncipal and interest
on outstanding indebtedness

Credut risk for deposits is the nisk that, in the event of a bank fatlure, the University s deposits may
not be retumed to the University At June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, all uncollateralized or
uninsured deposits of the University are exposed 1o credit nisk. The University's investment policy
and asset allocation guidelings facilitate the management and momitoring of credit nisk
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Note 4 - Investments

The University s investment policy authonzes the University to invest non-endowed and endowed
University funds in compliance with provisions of the Ohio Revised Code including House Bill 324,
Section 3345.05 of the Ohio Revised Code. and all other applicable laws and regulations

In accordance with the Policies of the Board of Trustees of the University, investment types are not
specifically limited but shall be made with carc. skill. prudence. and diligence under the
circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in like capacity and familiar with such
matters would use in the conduct of an enterpnise of a like character and with like aims. Furthermore,
investments shall be managed for the use and benefit of the University in a diversified portfolio that
focuses, over ime. on the preservation of capital, minimization of cost and risk, and maintenance of
required levels of liquidity in the overall portfolio to meet cash flow requirements The University
utilizes an iy estment advisor and investment manager for non-endowment funds

The University’s investments measured and reported at fair value are classificd aceording 1o the
following hicrarchy

Level I - Investments reflect prices quoted 1n active markets

Level 2 - Investments reflect prices that arc based on a similar observable asset either directly
or indirectly. which may include inputs in markets that are not considered to be active

Level 3 - Investments reflect prices based upon unobservable sources

Net Asset Value (NAV) - Investments valued at net asset value. therefore not subject to the
hicrarchy classification

The categorization of investments within the hicrarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the
instrument and should not be perceived as the particular investment’s nisk

Assets classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued directly from a pnmary external
pricing vendor  Level 2 mputs are valued using a matnix pncing model
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As of June 30, 2022, the Umiversity had the following investuments measured at fair value

Fair Vilue Measurement

Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV Total
U8 Government Obligations § - 8 7789 % - 8 - § TTIRON
Comporate Bonds - 0.0079,554 - - 007,554

2ign Bonds - 184,359 - - 184,350

8 Government Honds - 1137368 . - L3768
Bond Mutual Funds 13,926,763 . - 2 13,926,768
Common Swek 73067 - z . 7443067
Equity Mutual Funds 25,597,963 - 2 . 25597963
Ahemative Invesunents - s s 000,000 5000000
Totals § 46967793 % 18120214 § < § SO00000 § 70088007

As of June 30. 2021, the University had the following investments measured at fair value

Fair Value Measurement

Investment Type Level | Level2 Level 3 NAV Total
US Govemnent Obligatons— § - S 6005684 § -8 - 8 6605681
Corporate Bonds - RITIO81 - - 8,173,981
US Governnent Bonds - 2405457 . . 2405457
Bond Mutual Funds 14,508, 180 - 14,508, 180
Prefemed Stock - 14,900 - - 114900

Common 10,134,024 - . . 10.1
Equity Mutual Funds 34755243 - . 14.755.242

Totals $ 530397746 § 17300022 8§ . § - § 766897768

Because alternative investments have no acuve market, they are valued using NAV, which is based
on information such as historical and current performance of the underlving assets: cash flow
projections, liquidity and credit premiums required by a market parucipant, and financial trend
analysis with respect to the individual fund manager Furthermore. the liquidity of these investments
may be impacted by the lack of a present market of the interest in the funds. lock-up periods,
redemption notice periods and hmits 1o the frequency of redemptions

The following table provides additional information for those investments valued using NAV.

Redemption
Fau Value June 30 Redenption  Notice Unfunded
A 2021 Frequency  Poriod Commitment
Alternative investments.
Hedge funds S S § - Quanety  6Sdayy S -

The Universaty s total altemative investment exposure are hedge funds through a hmuted parinership
interest The underlying hedge fund managers invest primarily in marketable securities that trade in
well-established and liquid markets Styles of managers include equity long-short, relatve value,
event dnven, credit, or macro, among other sub-stvles and specialues  The objective of the hedge
funds 1s to achieve an attracuve nsk-adjusted retum relative to other asset classes and provide
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diversification and long-term growth  The hedge funds are valued at fair value that are reported in
the investment manager financial statements, based on net asset value of the fund at the end of the
depicted ime peniod

As of June 30, 2022, the University had the following investments and maturitics using the
segmented ime distnbution method

Investment neturitics {m vears)

Tnvestment Type Fag Value Less than | 1-5 10 More than 10
US Govemment Obligations  § 7718930 § @215 § 6445624 % 12587 0§ 167563
Corporte Bonds 9479554 4512% 7681346 3,532 4140
Foreign Bonds 184,150 - 184,159 - w
US Govemnment Bonds RS TI0.7M0 15,503
Bond Mutual Funds 13,926,763 - - v
Common Stock T4 06T # & 5
Equity Mutual Funds 25.597.961 25 - - -
Alemative Investments S.000.000 SO000600 - - -
Totals $ TORIO0T  $ S3J01M § I4IRI42  § 17ITRRU § 65 46

All callable stocks were assumed to mature in less than onc year

As of June 30, 2021, the University had the following investments and matunties using the
segmented time distnbution method

Investment maturitics (i years )

Investment Type Faw Value Less than | 1-5 &10 More than 10
US Govemment Oblgations  § 6605684 § 334§ S0m269 § MRO7L S -
Comporate Bonds RT3 81 810,142 64BN uT4,557 41183
US Govemment Bonds 2405457 151278 30171 1493372 TIG
Fond Mutual Funds 14,508,180 14.508,15) . : =
Prefared Stock 1450 14,90 - - -
Common Stock 10134324 10134324 - - .
Egquaty Mutual Funds 2 14755242 -

Totals $ 60777410 § 12352539 § 37600 § 751819

All callable stocks were assumed 1o mature in less than onc year

As of June 30, 2022, investments had the followmng quality credit ratings

Invesument Type Faur Value Asa Aa A Bas Unrated
Corponate Honds 3 907955 § 163248 0§ 50920 $3433938  $2956715 S 1005567
Foreign Bonds 184,359 - - 184,350 - "
US. Govemnent Bonds L137,368 LI37368 - - - -
Hond Mutual Funds 13.926. 761 $.638.197 462062 1.259.11% 5 8Wa5) 740,440
Totak S0 S RAWOI0 § 120K SYRTIAM _SRIGIATGC $ L7600
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As of Junc 30. 2021, investments had the following quality credit ratings

Investment Type Fair Vahie Asa A A Haa Unrated
Corporate Bonds $ RI7IURL $ 1302931 S S3079,178 S2792358 5 THLIYI
US Govenment Bonds 2,408,457 2254178 5 2 =
Bond Mutual Funds 14,508 1500 5421227 U85320 1273849 _ 5689938 735817
Totals $ 25 0R7618 $ 9.180.336 $ 1394911 $4.151 ﬁ#&),:uﬁ $ LATT.02R

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk 1s the nsk that changes i interest rates wall adversely afTect
the fair value of an investment The Umiversity's investment policy and asset allocaton guidelines
facilitate the management and monitoring of its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
nterest rates

Credit Risk ~ Credit nsk is the nisk that an issuer or other counterparty to an mvestment will not
fulfill its obligations. Credit quality, as commonly expressed in terms of credit ratings issued by
nationally recognized statistical ratng organmizations such as Moody 's Investors Services. Standard
& Poor’s or Fich rating provides a current depiction of potential vaniable cash flows and eredut nsk
The University’s investment policy and asset allocauon gwidelines contain provisions to manage
credit nsk

Custodial Credut Rigk - Custodial credit risk 15 the nsk that m the event of the falure of the
counterparty 1o a transaction, the University will not be able to recover the value of investments or
collateral sccuntics that are in the possession of an outside party.  Investments that are both
unregistered and uninsured are exposed 1o custodial credit nsk af investments are held by the
counterparty, or are held by the counterparty s trust department or agent but not in the name of the
University At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Umversity had no exposure to custodial credit nsk. The
University docs not address custodial credit nsk i its investment policy and asset allocation
guidelines

cl C Risk - Concentration of credit nsk s the nsk of loss attributed to the
magnitude of mvestment in a single 1ssuer.  As of June 30. 2022, $5.113.700 or 7% of the
University s pertfolio was held in an intermediate bond fund and $5.343.570 or 8% was held in a
short-term bond fund  As of June 30, 2021, $5.647.949 or 7% was held in an intermediate bond
fund

Foreign Currency Risk - Foreign cumrency nisk 1s the nsk that changes n exchange rates wall
adversely afTect the fair value of an investment or deposit. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the University
had no material exposure 1o foreign currency nisk. The University does not address forcign currency
nisk in its investment policy and asset allocation guidelines
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d Loans Receivable

Accounts and loans receivable at June 30. 2022 and June 30, 2021 consist

¢ following

2022 2021

Accounts secevable, net
Student accounts, net of allowance for doubtful

accounts of $1,194.018in 2022and $1.071.988 m 2021 § 4279A12 § Saedinl
Grants and contracts, net of allowance for doubtful

accounts of $246 m 2022 and $331 in 2021 3630408 9425445
State capital appropnations 1.296.162 295920
Other recervables, net of allowance for doubtful

aceounts of $13.639 i 2022 and $28.459 i 2021 2477205 2953601
Accounts fece S 11692607 S 18039267
Loans reeervable - student notes, net of allowance for doubtful

sccounts of $2.701 @ 2022 and $15,826 m 2021 98137 6842
Less: curment pantson 9R.13T
Loans receivable, noncunent portion 3 = 5 33145

Note 6 P abl

Unconditional promises to give to the Umversity recorded as pledges recewvable at June 30. 2022
and June 30, 2021 were as follows

2022 021
Pledges receivable, net of allowance for douhtful
accounts uf $0in 2022 and $7.950in 2021,
and present valie discount of $9.247 in 2022
and $1.407 in 2021 LTI R A (A T
Less! curent portion 63,171 167.117
Pledges recenvable. noncurmrent portion $ 140753 3 *

Pledges have been discounted 1o net present value using June 30, 2022 and June 30. 2021 US
Treasury Note rates of 3.25% (3-vear) in fiscal vear 2022 and 0 893% (S-year) in fiscal year 2021
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e 7 pital ets

Caputal assets acuvity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows

Beginnmg Additions/ Ending
Balance Trensfers Reductions Balance
Nondepreciable assets
Land § 17810443 § s <8 IRSRA
Construction n progress 1,515,662 = 5551561
Histoneal treasures 1021538 - 1031338
Dipreciable assets
Buiklings 289171279 - m026T
provements to bukdings 12738797 - 115933019
trprovements other than buildings 1847151 B - 49,808,250
Moveable cquipment and fumitune 41,550,738 1697580 150,537 44 RER THT
Velickes 1519972 78518 R7.460 1711018
Right-to-use assets - equipment 2048730 2 - 2048730
Total cost 515824310 13469647 A0 S2RRIGS]
Less accummlated deprecation,
Huiklings 192,249,065 4788285 s 197,037,350
31391687 4.325.375 - 15.717.062
27.452.743 2578918 - 0031061
Moveable equipment snd fumiture 36,693,226 2,536,310 157.229 ARATL 0T
Vehicles 1,301,645 133,588 87,469 1.347,764
Right-to-use a33ets - cquipment 427894 8613 - 816,512
Totaluccumulbited depreciation 289.516.2635 1477 10y AR
Capital assets, net $226308045  § (1301462 § 2308
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Capital assets aciity for the vear ended June 30, 2021 was as follows

Restated
Beginning  Additions/ Fading
Halinee Transfers  Reductions  Balance

ahle assets

§ 1778943 5 - $ 17810448
Construstion in progress 4290786 - 1518662
istoreal treasures 913258 - 1,021,538
IXprecuble assets
Bukdmgs 289394727 149.245 7203 AT
Inprovements to bukdmgs 95068939 17669858 - H2738.797
lrprovenments other than buddings 47364302 1498352 4R 4H7.151
Moveabk equipnent and fumiture 41563384 24330600
Vehuckes 1,493,582 47.858
Right-to-use asacts - equipment 2048730 - -
Total cost 4900957681 1902285 1255916 SISK243N0

Less accumulated deprection.
Huidings 187,833,347

ATION § 192249068

lnprovements 1o buikdings - 11,391 687
Inproverents other than buildings 251610 274520
Moveable equipment and fumiture 36,313,851 2361025 36,693 224
Vehiches 1194252 126838 1945 1301645
Right-{o-ise assets - cquipiment 387394 40.505 -

Total accumilated depreciation 27841488 1105532 3004180
Capital assets. net S221SI279R S SOI7.013 § 251766 § 226308045
Note 8 — Pavroll and Other Liabilities

Pavroll and other habilities at June 30, 2022 and 2021 consist of the following

2022 2021
Payroll labilities
Acenied compensation SIWITI S 40075
Acerued benefits 232983 s
Acerid health caré henelits and insurance payable 181

“

Retirement svstem contrbution pavable 1,539,631
Totals $ X7 XTT § K418 691
(nther labibties
Deposits held m custody § s $ 20ix
Interest pavable 450502 21130
(nher habilities 127564 24
Tty Fizmer Shmuas

Estimated expenses ultimately to result. if unperformed commitments in process at June 30, 2022
are completed, totaled $12 4 million compared to $9 4 million at June 30, 2021, These amounts do
not constitute expense mewrred or habilities
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Note 9 - Bonds

In July 2021, the University issued $28,065.000 in Senes 2021 General Receipts bonds. The
proceeds from the bond sale were used for an advanced refunding of the Series 2010 General
Receipts bonds and Senes 2011 General Receipts bonds. As a result, $20,305,000 of the 2010 bonds
and $13,185,000 of the 2011 bonds refunded are considered to be defeased and the Labihity was
removed from the University's long-term obligations. The current refunding was undertaken to
achieve debt service savings This refunding transaction reduced debt service payments by
§7.512.351 and resulted m an cconomic gain of $7.391.589. For this curment refunding, the
reacquisition price exceeds the net carnving amount of the old debt by $29.017. This amount was
recorded as a deferred outflow of resources and will be amortized over the remaining life of the new
debt. As of June 30, 2022, the amount recorded as a deferred outflow was $26,771. As of June 30,
2022, the outstanding principal of the 2021 General Receipts bond was $28.065.000. In connection
with the issuance of the Senes 2021 General Receipts bonds. the University also recognized a net
bond premium in the amount of $5.872.342 which will be amortized against interest expense over
the hife of the bond

Details of the bonds pay able for the General Receipts Bonds. Series 2021 as of June 30, 2022 follow

Maturity  Original

Bond Conponent Rate Through  Principal

Senal Hond O0RG 2023 -
Seral Bond 400 2024 105,000
Seral Bond 4,000t 2025 1,945,000
Senal Bond 400, 2026 2,465,000
Senal Bond 400 2027
Senal Bond 40007 2028
Senal Hond 400rs 2029
Senal Bond 400 2030
Senal Bond 4000P 2031 2,990,000
Senal Bond 4000 2032 3110.0m
Senal Bond EL 2033 3,230,000
Seral Bond 3000 04
Total

In January 2017, the Umiversity issucd $25.525.000 in Senies 2016 General Receipts bonds  The
proceeds from the bond sale were used for a parual advanced refunding of the Senies 2009 General
Receipts bonds and to construct a bookstore. As a result. $19.930.000 of the 2009 bonds advanced
refunded were considered o be defeased and the hability was removed from the University 's long-
term obligations  In addition. a deferred outflow of resources was recorded and will be amortized
over the remaining hie of the new debt  As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the amount recorded as a
deferred outflow was $1.429.483 and $1.354.268. respecuvely
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Details of the bonds pavable for the General Receipts Bonds. Senes 2016 as of Junc 30, 2022 follow

Matunty Original

Bond Component  Rate Through  Principal

Senal Bond S00r. ;2 1320000
Serial Bond soar. 224 1,380,000
Seral Bond S000m. B 1458000
Senal Hond S0, 2026 1,524 000
Serial Bond Soor. 2027 LE00m
Senal Bond aoar. 2008
Senal Hond 328, 2029
Serial Bond S0, 230 1780000
Senal Bond soar. 031 1LET0.000
Senal Bond 3 S0P 232
Senal Hond 033
Senal Band 2034
Term Band 2038 30000
Term Band 2036 3200000
Term Bond (KNP 2037 338000
Term Bond A 2038
Total

In June 2011, the Board of Trustees of Youngstown State University authonzed through a Board
resolution the issuance of General Receipts Bonds, Series 2011 in the amount of $18,660,000. The
$19.006,093 in bond proceeds were receved in July 2011, The Series 2011 Bonds were utilized to
pay costs associated with acquining the University Courtyard Apartments, any necessary related
improvements thereto and 1o pay costs of issuing the Series 2011 Bonds. In July 2021, the remaining
principal balance of $13, 185,000 was refunded with the issuance of the Series 2021 General Receipts
bonds and the liability was removed from the University 's long-term obligation

As part of the Amencan Recovery and Remnvestment Act of 2009, states and local governments arc
permitted to 1ssue two types of taxable obligations. referred 1o as Build America Bonds (BABs)
The BABs include federal subsidics to offsct a portion of interest costs as an altematve to 1ssuing
wradinonal tax-exempt obligations

In March 2010. the University 1ssued $25.335.000 of General Receipts Bonds (Taxable Build
Amenica Bonds), Senes 2010 to provide funding to pay costs associated with facilities planning for
the University's College of Science. Technology. Engineening and Mathematics (STEM), convent
the old college of business building for use as a laboratory, office and classroom space, renovate
Kilcawley Center, reconligure and replace campus parking facilities, construct the WATTS Center,
relocate certaun existing outdoor athletic facilities and pay the costs of issuance of the Senes 2010
Bonds In Scptember 2011, approximatcly $9 9 million was re-allocated from the Kilcawley Center
project to Academic building renovation projects In July 2021, the remaining principal balance of
$20.305,000 was refunded with the 1ssuance of the Senes 2021 General Receipts bonds and the
liability was removed from the University's long-term obligation

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
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The University designated the Senies 2010 Bonds both as Build Amenica Bonds and as Qualified
Bonds and intends to apphy for Credit Pavments pursuant only to the extent that the Series 2010
Bonds remain Qualified Bonds. which requires the University to comply with certain covenants and
to establish certain facts and expectations with respect to the Serics 2010 Bonds. the use and
investment of proceeds thereof and the use of property financed thereby

In March 2009, the University issued $31.255,000 of General Receipts Bonds. Series 2009 o
acquire, construct and cquip the new Williamson College of Business Administration building.
renovate and replace portions of the existing Wick Pollock Inn, refund the remuning General
Receipts Bonds, Series 1997 and Series 1998, refund the General Receipts Bond Anucipation Notes.
Senies 2008 (BAN), and pay a portion of the costs of issuance of the bonds  In January 2017,
$19.930.000 of the bonds were advanced refunded with the issuance of the Serics 2016 General
Receipts bonds. The balance of the amoeunt defeased and put in esceow was $17.030,000 at June 30,
2022 and $18.040,000 at June 30. 2021

The indebiedness created through all issues of the General Receipts Bonds 1s bound by the Amended
and Restated Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2009 The Senies 2010 Bonds. Series 2011 Bonds,
Series 2016 Bonds, and Series 2021 Bonds arc also bound by the First Supplemental Trust Indenture
dated as of February 2010; and 1 addition. the Serics 2011 Bonds, Serics 2016 Bonds and Serics
2021 Bonds are also bound by the Second Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of July 1, 2011,
and the Series 2016 Bonds and Senes 2021 Bonds are also bound by the Third Supplemental Trust
Indenture dated December 1, 2010, and the Senies 2021 Bonds are also bound by the Fourth
Supplemental Trust Indenture dated June 1, 2021 The University has complicd with all covenant
requirements

The debt 1s secured by a pledge of all University general receipts. excluding state appropriations and
receipts previously pledged or otherwise restncted. Pavment of bond principal and interest on the
Bond Senes 2009 was guaranteed under a municipal bond insurance policy

Matunties of all bonds pavable and debt service for fiscal years subscquent to June 30, 2022 follow
(also see Note 12)

General Receipts Bonds

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
$ L3200 $ LITT2NM $ 12972
1485000 X 3392604
3 400,000 1795819 5195819
3,990,000 1633119 5623119
4,160,000 LAS4 454 S6144%
2028-2032 23,375,000 404,693 27.979.693
2032-2037 1L645,000 snax 12216227
2038 350400 pALL) 387,000
Totals $ 49,725,000 $ 13,951 i) $63 676,140
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Federal subsidics reccived by the University were $16.613 1n fiscal year 2022 and $433.843 in fiscal
vear 2021 These arc reported as non-operating federal grant revenue  Inlerest cxpense on
indebtedness was $1.321.249 in fiscal year 2022 and $2.909.963 in fiscal year 2021

The University’s Trust Agrecment governing all outstanding general reccipts bonds contans a
provision that in an event of default, the Trustee shall, within five business days after having
knowledge of that event of default, give wnillen notice to the University The trustee shall also give
the original purchasers of cach senes of Bonds then outstanding. and to the bondholders and any
other paying agents notice of cach event of default within 90 days afier having knowledge of the
occurrence thereof  The Trust Agreement also contains a provision, that in the case an cvent of
default has occurred. the Trustee may, upon wnlten request of the holders of at least 25%
aggregate principal amount of the bonds then outstanding. declare the principal of all bonds
outstanding and the interest accrued o be due and payable immediately

The following constitutes an event of default under the Trust Agreement

a  Failure o pay any interest on any Bond, when it becomes due and pavable,

b, Failure to pay the principal of or any redemption premium on any Bond, when it becomes
due and payable. whether at matnty or by acceleration or call for redemption:

¢ Failurc to perform or observe any other covenant. condition or agreement contained i the
Bonds or the Trust Agreement and to be performed by the Umiversity, which failure shall
have continued for a period of 30 davs after written notice of it to the University given by
the Trustce or the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the bonds then
outstanding,

Note 10 — Notes Pavable

Duning fiscal vear 2016, the University entered into a 14-year performance contract with Johnson
Controls for campus encrgy savings measures  The contract amount of $16 million includes an
assured performance providing for an annual measured cost savings of not less than $2 million per
vear and was financed as a direct borrowing through PNC Equipment Finance over 14 years at an
interest rate of 3366% and requircs annual installment pavments  In September 2020, PNC
Equipment Finance sold. assigned, and transferred the note pavable to Huntington Public Capital
Corporation Secunity of the debt is limited to the revenues appropriated for such purpose
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Details of the revised mstallment schedule follows

scal Year  Principal Interest Toral

2023 5 LO7R6TY S 407,381 S 1486054
2024 1.203.118 371083 1.574.211
2025 1324774 330,618 1,655,392
06 1438677 286,051 B 728

am? 1,549,702 237,652 1,787,354
8 185518 L 412

2029 127,854 1,997,287
2030 65.005 1.997.286
Totals S5 2.011.212 S 14,120,724

Interest expense on indebtedness was $409.834 in fiscal vear 2022 and $441.572 in fiscal vear 2021
The following constitutes an event of default under the master agreement
a Failure to make pavment as it becomes due. and anv such fulure continues for ten (10) days
after the due date.
b Failure to perform or observe any oblhigations under Section 12.1. 14 or 18 1 hercof’
¢ Failure to perform or observe any other covenant. condition or agreement to be performed or
observed by it under the agreement and such failure 1s not cured within thirty (30) davs after
receipt by the borrower of wnitten notice thercol by the lender

Note 11 - Leases

The University leases certamn assets from various third partics. The assets leased includes pnnt shop.
mailroom and printer/copier equipment  Pavments are generally fixed monthly - Fuwre principal
and interest pavment requirements related w the University's lease lability at June 30, 2022 are as
follows

Year Ending June 30, Interest Total
2023 $ 0 adw 5 2500
5216 217645
4050 240,000
2995 240,000
1927 240,000
2028- 209,101 508 269 999

Toral § 13500240 3 21594 $ 1521834

See Note 7 Capital Asscts for the total amount of leased asscts and the related accumulated
amortization

w
o
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Long-term Lability activity (also see Notes Y, 10. and 11) for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as
follows:

Beginning Ending Current
Bakince Additions  Reductions  Balince Portion
Bunds payable
Ceneral receipts bonds pnncipal 56,405,000 $2R.065.000 $ 34,745,000 $40.725,000 $L320.000

Unanwntwed prepzunydiscount 5810643 5.87. 850,922 $.602.063 -
Bonds payable, net 56,985,643 1.9 35505922 55.327.063 1,320,000
Nute pavable 13,059,956 - 030,444 12,100,512 1078673
Leased liabikities 1.767.369 - 267,129 1,500,240 27691
Coppensated absences 595,243 - 280,855 614,388 950,134
Refundable advance 670781 - AURATL 172,310 A

Total kong-temliabilities $79078.092 831937342  $37T302821 $75423513 § 1506408

Long-term liability activity (also see Notes 9, 10. and 1 1) for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as
follows

Restated
Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additons Reductions Balinee Portion
Bonds payeble
Ceneral receipts bonds pnncipal $59.500.000  § - 0§ 3095000 §50405000 8 3230000
Unamontwed prenzunydiscount 778073 S 197,430 580641 -
Bonds payable. net €0.278.073 - 3292430 56985643 1230000
Note payable 13,919,024 - R39,068 13,059,956 950,444
Leased Gabilities 181148 # 1,579 1767360 267,129
Conpensated absences 6,99 865 - 401622 6,595 243 R57.970
Refundable advance 1288875 - GIR.094 670781 &
Total long-termlibilities S84.264785 § - § 5215793 §7O.07H992 § 5305543

Note 13 — Emplovee Benefit Plans

Plan Descriptions

The University participates in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio) and the
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), statewide. cost-sharmg, multiple-cmplover
defined benefit public employee retirement systems governed by the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) that
covers substanually all emplovees of the Umiversity.  Each system has multple retirement plan
options available to sts members, with three options in STRS Ohio and OPERS  Each system
provides retirement, survivor, and disability benefits to plan members and their beneficianies. The
systems also cach provide post-cmployment health care benefits (including Medicare B premiums)
to retirces and beneficiaries who clect to receive those benefits

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY
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Each retirement system 1ssues a publicly available financial report that mcludes financial statements
and required supplementary information for the pension and post-cmployment health care plans.
The reports may be obtained by contacuing

State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio Ohio Public Employvees Retirement System
275 E Broad Street 277 East Town Street

Columbus, Olio 43215 Columbus, Ohio 43215

(888) 227-7877 (800) 222-7377

WA oh.org WIW OPErs. ore

Contributiony

State retirement law requires contributions by covered emplovees and their employers, and Chapter
3307 of the Olio Revised Code (ORC) limits the maxamum rate of contnbutions. The retirement
boards of the systems individually set contributions rates within the allowable limits, The adequacy
of employver contribution rates is determined annually by actuanial valuation using the entry age
normal cost method. Under these provisions. cach University's contribution 1s expected to finance
the costs of benefits camed by employees duning the vear. with an additional amount to finance a
portion of the unfunded accrued liability

Member contributions are set at the maximums authonized by the ORC. The plans’ 2022 and 2021
emplover and member contribution rates on covered payroll to each system are

Member
Contribution
Enployer Contribution Rate Rate
Post-

Retirennent Death
Healtheare Benefits  Medicare B Total Totat
STRS Ohio o (1 00ve 1400 14.0%
OPERS-State Logal 0% 00 00 140 0.

OPERS-Law Enforcement 0y 00 04rs 18:1% 1300
The required and actual contributions to the plans are

Forthe years ended 630

022 2021
Pension OPEB Pension OPER
§ 4766737 § - 3 4865815 % -
5,391 644 - 4R16.380 -
$ 10158381 § - 3 96R2195 § -

Benefits Provi
STRS Ohio

Plan benefits are established under Chapter 3307 of the ORC. as amended by Substitute Senate Bill
342 1n 2012, gives the Retirement Board the authonty to make future adjustments to the member
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contribution rate. retirement age and service requirements, and the COLA as the need or opportunity
anses, depending on the retirement system’s funding progress

Effective August 1. 2017-July 1. 2019, any member may retire who has (1) five vears of service
credit and attained age 60. (2) 27 vears of service credit and attained age 35: or (3) 30 years of
service credit regardless ol age Effective August [, 2019-July 1, 2021, any member may retire with
reduced benefits who has (1) five vears of service credit and age 60, (2) 28 vears of service credit
and age 35, or (3) 30 vears of service credit regardless of age. Beginning August 1. 2015, eligibility
requirements for an unreduced benefit changed.  The maximum annual retirement allowance.
payable for life, considers vears of credited service, final average salary (3-3 vears) and muluplying
by a factor ranging from 2 2 percent ta 2.6 percent with 0.1 pereent ineremental increases for years
greater than 30-31, depending on retirement age

A defined benefit plan or combined plan member with five or more vears of credited service who is
determined to be disabled (illness or mjury preventing individual’s ability to perform regular job
duties for at least 12 months) may receive a disability benefit Additionally. eligible survivors of
members who die before service retirement may qualify for monthly benefits New members on or
after July 1, 2013, must have at least 10 vears of qualifving service credit to apply for disability
benefits

A death benefit of $1.000 1s payable to the beneliciary of each deceased retired member who
participated in the plan. Death benefit coverage up to $2.000 can be purchased by participants in all
three of the plans. Various other benefits are available to members® beneficianes

STRS Ohio provides access to healtheare coverage lo retirees who participated in the Defined
Benefitor Combined Plans. and their dependents.  Coverage under the current program includes
hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription drugs. and partial reimbursement of monthly Medicare
Part B premiums  Pursuant to the ORC, the Siate Teachers Retirement Board (the “Board™) has
disercuonary authonty over how much. if any. of the healtheare costs will be absorbed by STRS
Ohio. All benefit recipients pay a portion of the healthcare cost in the form of a monthly premium

OPERS

Plan benefits are established under Chapter 145 of the ORC, as amended by Substitute Senate Bill
34302012, The requirements to retre depends on vears of service (3 to 30 vears) and from attaining
the age of 48 to 62, depending on when the employec became a member Members retiring before
age 65 with less than 30 vears” service credit receive a percentage reduction in benefit, except for
public safety and law enlorcement participants. Member retirement benefits are caleulated on a
formula that considers vears of service (3-30 vears). age (48-62 vears) and final average salary, using
a factor ranging from | percent to 2.3 percent

A plan member who becomes disabled before age 60 or at any age. depending on when the member
entered the plan, and has completed 60 contributing months is cligible for a disabi enefit

A death benefit of $300 - $2.500 15 determined by the number of years of service credit of the retirce
Benehts may transfer to a beneficiary upon death with 1.5 years ol service credits with the plan
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obtained within the last 2.5 vears, except for law enforcement and public safety personnel who are
eligible immediately upon employment

Benefit terms provide for annual cost-of-living adjustments to cach employee's reurement allowance
subscquent to the employvee’s retirement date. The annual adjustment, if applicable. 1s 3 percent. or
an amount based on the average percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index. capped at 3
percent

Net Pension Liability, Deferrals, and Pension Expense

At June 50, 2022 and 2021, the University reported a liability for us proportionate share of the net
pension liabilitv of STRS Ohio/OPERS. For June 30, 2022, the net pension lability was measured
as of June 30, 2021 for STRS Ohuo and December 31, 2021 for the OPERS plan For Jung 30. 2021,
the net pension hability was measured as of June 30, 2020 for STRS Ohio and December 31, 2020
for the OPERS plan.  The total pension hability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of those dates. The Umiversity’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of its long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative 1o the projected contributions of all participating reporting units, actuanally determined

Percent Percent

Measurement Net Pensaon Liabilty Propostionate Share Change

Plan Date 2022 2m1 2022 21 2020-21
STRSChiv  Junc 30§ 36011446 § 76,130,550 028165 0314615% O0I2985% 0141594
OPERS December 31 19455611 0234737 0221270 0011467 D021398%

For the vears ended June 30. 2022 and 2021, the University recognized pension expense of
($7.244.941) and $4.841.432, respectively. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the University reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 1o pensions from the
following sources

a2 2021
Deferred Deterred Defermed Deferred
Outflows of Inflowsof  Outflowsof  Inflows of
B R R % R

Ditferences between expected and actual $ OLINM288 § RO 8 IBLIS2 8 2000000

experenee
Changes of assumptions 12619750 - 414104
Met difference between projected and actual

cammygs on pension plan investments " 55,754,267 370,238 13002513

Changes in proportion and diflerences between
Unversity contabutions and propurtionate

share of contmbutions 688,335 S640538 32,950 7,196,307
Uniersity contnbutins subsequent

tu the measurement date 75318936 - 7435116 -
Totals § 23015300 § A5195303 3 ISROS606 § 22320129
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources/(deferred inflows of resources) related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows

Year Ended June 30 Amount

$ (10,983.267)

(14,705,783)

(12485,547)

(1.831,777)
207

Thereatter

Totals

In addition. the contnbutions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction of
the net pension liability i the next vear

Net OPER Liability/(Asset), Deferrals, and (OPER Expense

At June 30, 2022, the Universaty reported a hability/(asset) for 1ts proportionate share of the net
OPEB liabiluy/(asset) of STRS Ohio/OPERS  For June 30, 2022, the net OPEB liabiliy /(asset) was
measured as of June 30, 2021 for STRS Ohio and December 31. 2021 for the OPERS plan For June
30, 2021, the net OPEB hability/(asset) was measured as of June 30, 2020 for STRS Ohio and
December 31, 2020 for the OPERS plan. The total OPEB hability/(asset) used to calculate the net
OPEB hability/(assct) was determined by an actuanal valuation as of those dates. except OPERS
which used an actuanal valuation dated December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, rolled forward
to the measurement date by incorporaung the expected value of health care cost aceruals, the actual
health care pavments. and interest accruals during the vear for the defined benefit health care plans

Typically, the Universitv's proportion of the nct OPEB hability/(assct) would be based on a
projection of its long-term share of contributions 1o the OPEB plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating reporting units, actuanally determined. except as noted below

For plan years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, STRS Ohuo did not allocate emplover contnbutions
to the OPEB plan  Therefore, STRS Ohio’s calculation of the employers’ proportionate share is
based on total contributions to the plan for both pension and OPEB

For plan vears ending December 31, 2021 and 2020, OPERS did not allocate employer contributions
to the OPEB plan. Therefore. OPERS’s calculation of the employers’ proportionate share is based
on total contnbutions to the plan for both pension and OPEB

Percent Percent

Measurcinent  Net OPEB Lability (Asset) Proportionate Share Change Change

Plan Date 2021 2022 21 2021-22 2020-21

STRS Gl June 30 $ (5.530.000) 0281650% 03146515 L013002% D 011280%

OPERS Decemher 31 (056, 43) 0232723 0.223075%  D010648% 0 020244%
5 (9.486.H1)
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For the yecars ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1. the University recogmized a credit to OPEB expense of
$8.037.903 and $26,008.204. respectively At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the University reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred mflows of resources related to OPEB from the following
sources

22 2021
Deferred Deferred Deferred Defered
Outflows of Inflows of Outflons of Infows of

Dufferences between expected and actual s M § 2195666 § ERS ELLVI T ¥ on KO

expencnce
Changes of assumptions 379,00 6493602 2036033 11662624
Net difference between projected and actual

cammgs vn OPHS mvestments - 312099 19400 210725

Changes m proportion and differcnces between

Unwersity contnbutions and proporionate

share of contributions 190,035 TS 13792 2250138
Unreersity contnbutions subsequent

to the measurement daic . - 5 G
Totals 3 T80, ﬂs_: S 14578811 8 2597825 § 20693706

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources/(deferred inflows of resources) related 1o OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows

Yeas Ended June 30 Amount
2023 s

(L165628)
(2345822)
2026 (1192346
2027
Thereatter
Totals
In addution. if applicable. the b b to the measurement date will be icluded as

a reduction of the net OPEB liability/(assct) in lhcl next year
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Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension habihty and OPEB liability/(asset) 1s based on the results of an actuanal valuation
and were determined using the following actuanal assumpuons for the University s current year

STRS Ohio OPIRS
Valuation date - Pension [June 30. 2021 December 31. 221
Valuation date - OPEB Decerber 31. 0000
Actuanal cost method Entry age nommul Indrvidual entry ase
Cost of living None 205" - 300P%
Salary increases, including (2507 - 125075 2 75% - 10 73%
inflation
Inlation 250r. 273
Investment rate of 7.0, net of ivestment expense 6,90, net ol myestment expense.
retum - Pension including infhtion nchsding inflation
[nvestment rate of 7.00*, net of mvestmen! opense 6.00%%, net o[ mvestment expense
retum - OPER including inflation including inthtion
Health care cost trend rates {16 2% to 30 0%« mitial. 4"« uhimate 5 5 nitial. 3 5% ultimute in N34

Expenence study date Period of §vears ended June 30. 2016 |Penod of 3 vears ended Decernber 31 XY
Mortality basis 2014 Annuitant Mortality Table Pre-retrement morality ates are based on
with 305 of rates through age 69, A% | 130 of the Pub-2010 General Enplovee
ol rates between T0and 7, 90 of Monakty tables (males and femakes) for
rates between ages 80and 84, and State and Local Govemment divisions.
100 of rates thereatter, progcted and 17073 of the Pub-2010 Safety

foraard generatonally using montahity [Employee Monality tables {mkes and
mpeovement scale MP-2016 fermales)) for the Pubbc Safety and Law
Enforcement divisions Postoretirement
mortality mates are based on 115% ofthe
PubG-2010 Retiree Mortality Tables
(mukes and fermles ) for all dvsons. Post-
retirement mortality rates for disabled
retires are based on the PubNS-2010
Disabled Retiree Monality Tables (males
and fermles ) for all divissons. Forallof
the previusly deserbed tables, the base
vearis 2010 and montality rates fora
particular calendar year arc determined by
applying the MP-120 monality
improvement scales (males and fenmles)
to all of these tables
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The follewing are actuanal assumptions for the University 's prior sear

STRS Ohio OPERS
Valuation date - Pension  [June 30. 2020 [December 31, 2020
Valuatwon date - OPEB June 30, 2020 II)\:ccmh:l AL 2019
Actuamal cost method Fntry age nomal Individual entry age
Costuolliving MNene 5% - 300N
Sabry mcreases, mcluding [2507%- 12,500 3.35% - 10 75%
milition
Inilation 2508 325%
[nvestment rte of 745%. net of mvestment expense 7.2P%, net of mvestment ey
retum - Pension meludmg ntlation meluding ntlaton
Investment rate of 745%. net of myestment expense 6008, net ol mvestment expense.
retum - OPEH mcluding nilaiton mcludmg milaton
Ifealth care cost trend rates [6.69% 1o 11 87 initial, 4% ultimate 83% inital 3 3% ulimate in 2033
Experience studv date Peniod of 3 vears ended June 30, 2016 Penod vl $ vears ended December 11, 2015
Mortality basis RP-2014 Annuitant Morntality Table RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant
with 5% of rates through age 69, 7% | Mortaliy Tabke
of rtes between 70 and 79, %% of
rates between ages 80 and ¥4, and
100%% of rates thereafier, projected
forwand generationally usmng mortabity
mmprovement scake MP-2016

Pension Discount Rate

The projection of cash Mows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee
contnibuticns will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be
made at contractually required rates for all plans  Based on those assumptions. cach pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for
current active and inactive emplovees Therefore, the long-lerm expected rate of retum on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability  The discount rates used to measure the total pension habiliues for STRS Ohio
were 7 00 percent and 7 45 percent for the plan years ended June 30. 2021 and 2020, respectively
The discount rates used to measure the total pension hability for OPERS were 690 percent and 7 20
percent for the plan vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively

OPEB Discount Rate

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that emplovee
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that emplover contributions will be
made at contractually required rates for all plans  Plans that project fiduciary net position o be
insufficient to make all projected future benefit pavments for current active and inactive employees
used a blended discount rate between the long-term cxpected rate of retum on plan mvestments and
a 20-year mumcipal bond rate applied to all penods of projected benefit payments to determme the
total OPEB habilitv/(asset)
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STRS Ohio OPEB Discount Rate - The discount rates used to measure the total OPEB
habilities/(assets) were 7.00 percent and 7 45 percent for the plan years ended Junc 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit pavments for current acuive and inactive emplovees
Therefore. the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all peniods
of projected benefit pavments to determine the total OPEB habiluy/(asset)

OPERS OPERB Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liabilities/(asscts)
was 6.00 pereent for the plan years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively - At December
31, 2021 and 2020, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available 1o make all
projected future benefit pavments for current acuve and mactive employees. Therefore. the long
term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applicd to-all penods of projected benefit
pavments (o determune the total OPEB hability
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The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan and OPEB plan investments were determined
using a bullding-block method in which best-cstimate ranges of expected future real rates of retun
(expected returns, net of plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for cach major asset
class These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weightng the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocaton percentage and by adding expected
inflatton  OPERS has two different portfolios of investment. a defined benefit portfolio for pension
and health care portfolio for OPEB. As a result, there are different target allocations and long-term
expected real rates of retur disclosed for each portfolio The target allocation and best esimates of
anthmetic (geometne for STRS Oluo) real rates of return for cach major asset elass are summanzed
i the following table as of the dates listed below

ST RS Ohio as of 630.21 OPERSas of 12/31:21
Penmon Portfolio Health Care Portfolio
Long-Term Tong-Term Tong-Term
Invesiment Target  ExpectedReal  Investment Target  expected Real  Target  expected Real
Category  Allocation Rate of Retum Category  Allocation Rate of Retun Allosation Rate of Retum
Domestic Fouaty 28.0% T8 Fived Income 0t 1 32% 14.0% 10T
International Fquty  230%  785% Domestic Fqutics $.64% 250%  S640
Alternatives 17 0% T Real Estate 5.39% 000
Frved Income 21 0% 1 00% Private Foaty 000
Real Exate 10.0% £.00% International Equity T 36%

Liquadity Rescrves 1o% Risk Panty
REITS 0007
Other Invesmnents 2880,
Totals
RS Ohio as of 6.30:20 OPERS a3 of 123120
Pension Port (ol Health Care Portlolio
LoagTerm Loag-Term Loag-Term
Investment Targer  Expected Real Tnvestment Target  expected Real  Target  expected Real
Category Allosation Rate of Retum Category Allocation Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return
Domedic Fuuty W0 Tasn Frxed Ingome ELEL B L 0%,
International Fyaty 230% 758%  Domestic Equties e St 250% S6ih
Alternatives 170%  TO09%  RealEstate 00%  DOGt.
Fived Income 30 o0te Private Equaty 0000
Real Edtate 100%  600%  Intemational Fagity 7 3a%
Liquadity Rewerves 1% 22 REITs BA8
Other lavesments 4020

Totals 100 0% 100 0%
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The following presents the net pension labihity of the Umiversity calculated using the discount rate
listed below, as well as what the Umiversity 's net pension liability would be 1f it were caleulated
using a discount rate that is 1 00 percentage point lower or 100 percentage point higher than the
current rale

2022 (S in thousands)
Plan 1% Decrease Curment Discount Rate
STRS Ohao L0t § (TR E To0re § 3011
OPERS S 3417 R 19456

$ 120833 s 55467

2021 ($ in thousands )

Flan 1%4 Decrease: Current Discount Rate 1% [ncrease

STRS Ohioy 645 & K397 T45% § T6.431 B43% § 45,788

OPERS 6AM, 62820 12P. 327 B20%, 1088
$ 171217 § 1083507 § 55873

h  of the net OPER liahility/asset) to changes in the discount rare

The following presents the net OPEB hability/(asset) of the Umiversity, ealeulated using the discount
rate histed below, as well as what the University's net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that 1s 1,00 percentage point lower or 1.00 percentage point higher
than the current rate

2022 (5 in thousands)

Plan 1% Dexrease Cugrent Diseount Rate 1% Increase
STRS Ohior G0 § (5011 TOr. § (5.938) BOre § (6.713)
OPERS Snir. (4.287) P (7280) Tore

S (9.208) §  (13337) S

2021 (S in thousands)

Plan 16 Decrease Current Discount Rate 15 Increase

STRS Ohio nase. § (4.811) 745 § (5530 845 § {6.139)

OPERS S00ra (984) 600t (1946) Tk (6,400)
s (3.793) S (94801 {12.539)
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Sensitivity of the net OPER liability/{asset) to changes in the health care cost trend rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability/(asset) of the University. calculated using the
healthcare cost trend rate listed below. as well as what the University's net OPEB liability/(assct)
would be 1f it were caleulated using a health care cost trend rate that 1s 1 00 pereentage pomt lower
or 1 .00 percentage point hugher than the current rate

2022 ($ i thousands)

Plan 195 Decrease Current Trend Rate 1% Increase

STRS Ohio 3 (6.682) 5 (5.938) 3 (5.019)

OPERS (7.368) (7.289) (7.196)
3 (14.050) 3 (13227} 3 (12215)

2021 ($ in thousands)

Phan 1% Decresse. Current Trend Rate 1% Increase

STRS Ohwy 3 (6.101) 3 (5.530) 5 (4831

OPERS (4.0%3) (3.956) (3849
3 (10,154) 5 (9 486) 3 {8.682)

Pension plan and OPER plan fiduciary net position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the scparately
1ssued STRS Ohio/OPERS financial report

Benefit changes

There were no significant benefit terms changes for the pension or OPEB plan(s) since the prior two
measurement dates for STRS Ohio Effective in 2022, OPERS will replace the current scll-insured
group plan with a marketplace concept for pre-Medicare retirees

Changes since the measurement date

STRS Ohio had a new expenence study completed for the peniod July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2021,
which will be used for the 2022 valuation. The expenience study indicates changes in assumptions,
including updating mortahity tables from RP-2014 to PubT-2010 (and related improvement factors).
retirement rates. and OPEB participation assumptions which will impact STRS Ohio net pension
hability and net OPEB liability

Assumption changes

Dunng the measurement periods ended June 30, 2021 and December 31. 2021, respectively, certain
assumption changes were made by the plans. The STRS Ohio pension and OPEB discount rates
were reduced from 743 percent o 700 percent. which impacted the annual actuanial valuation for
the pension and OPEB lhabilities as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date The OPERS pension
discount rate was reduced [rom 7 20 pereent to 6 90 percent. which impacted the annual actuanal
valuauen for the pension hability as of December 31, 2021
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Payable to the Pension Plans and (OPER Plans

The University reported a payable of $1,466.182 and $1.434.065 for the outstanding amount of
contributions to the STRS Ohio and OPERS pension plans required for the years ended June 30,
2022 and June 30, 2021, respectively

Defined Contribution Pension Plan

The Altenative Retirement Plan (ARP) 1s a defined contribution pension plan, under IRS Section
401(a). and established by Ohio Amended Substituie House Bill 586 (ORC 3305 02) on March 31,
1997. for public institutions of higher education. The University’s Board of Trustees adopted the
University's plan on December 11, 1998 Full-ume employees are chigible to choose a provider, in
licu of STRS Ohio or OPERS. from the hist of mne providers currently approved by the Olio
Department of Insurance and who hold agreements with the University.  Employee and employer
contnbutions equal to those required by STRS Ohio and OPERS are required for the ARP, less any
amounts required 1o be rematted to the state reurement system in which the employee would
otherwise have been enrolled

Eligible employees have 120 days from their date of hire to make an irevocable election to
participate in the ARP. Under this plan. employees who would have otherwise been required to be
in STRS Ohio or OPERS. and who clect to participate i the ARP, must contnbute the emplovee’s
share of retirement contributions o one of nine private providers approved by the Ohio Department
of Insurance  The legislation mandates that the emplover must contnibute an amount 1o the stawe
retirement system to which the emplovee would have otherwise belonged. based on an independent
actuanial study commissioned by the Ohio Retirement Study Council and submitied to the Ohio
Department of Higher Education. That amount 1s 4 47 percent for STRS Ohio and 2 44 percent for
OPERS for the vears ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 1 the employee was hired on or after August
2005. the employer contributes 6 00 percent. The employer also contributes what would have been
the emplover’s contnibution under STRS Ohio or OPERS, less the aforementioned percentages. to
the pnivate provider selected by the employee  The University plan provides these employees with
immediate plan vesting  The ARP does not provide disability bencflits, survivor bencelits, or
postreurement health care. Benefits are enurely dependent on the sum of contributions and
nvestment returns camed by cach participant’s choice of investment options  STRS Ohio and
OPERS also offer a defined b plan and a bined plan with features of both a defined
contribution plan and a defined benefit plan For the vear ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, employee
contributions totaled $1,299.939 and $1.279.040, and the University recognized pension expense of
$1.098.292 and $1.073.882, respectively

Note 14 — Contingencies and Risk Management

Durning fiscal vear 2018, the University formed a 19-member Risk Council that established a Risk
Management Program that provides a forum and process to strategically identify nisks that are of
utmost importance and develops coordinated and holistic mitigation plans that appropnately
addresses those nisks - The implementation of Enterpnse Risk Management provides the [ramework
to proactively and continuously manage neks in a manner consistent with the University 's mission.
goals. and culture
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The University 1s a defendant in vanious lawsuits. It is the opinion of University management that
disposition of pending htigauon will not have a matenial adverse cffect on the financial statements
of the University. The University receives grants and contracts from certain federal. state, and local
agencies 1o fund rescarch and other activities. The costs. both direct and indirect. that have been
charged to the grants or contracts are subject to examination and approval by the granung agency
It is the opimion of the University s admini that any disall ¢ or adjustment of such costs
would not have a matenal effect on the financial statements

The University is self-msured for all medical and drug employee health care benefits and fully
insured for dental and vision emplovee health care benefits. The self-msurcd plan includes stop loss
provisions

Liabilities for estimates of outstanding claims and claims mcurred but not reporied under self-
have been ded Changes in the sell-insured health carc habilitics included
n accrued health care benefits payable (also see Note 8) at June 30 were as follows

221
s 2323007 s

Lisbility at beginning of fiscalycar
Cument vear chims mecluding changes m estomtes
Climpaymenis

Liability at end of fiscalyear

19748612
(16.450.193) (18 852 075)
S 1 TR666T $ 21017

Health insurance claims are based upon estimates of the claims habilities Estimates are based upon
past experience. medical inflation trends. and current claims outstanding. including vear end lag
analvsis. Differences between the esumated claims pavable and actual claims paid are reported in
the Statements of Revenucs. Expenses. and Changes in Net Position

The University 1s exposed to vanous nisks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to. and destruction
of assets, crrors and onussions. injuries lo emplovees. and natural disasters  The University has
Joined with other state-assisted universities in Ohio to form an pool for the acqy of
commercial property and casualty insurance. The University pavs annual premiums to the pool for
its property and casualty insurance coverage based on its percentage of the total insurance value to
the pool  Future contnbutions will be adjusted based upon cach university’s loss history The
University had no significant reductions in coverage from the prior vear. [nsurance settlements have
not exceeded insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years

The University participates in a State pool of agencies and umiversitics that pays workers’
compensation premiums into the State Insurance Fund on a pay-as-you-go basis (the Plan), which
pavs workers’ pensation benefits to ben 1es who have been injured on the job. Losses from
asserted and unasserted claims for the participating state agencies and universities in the Plan are
accrued by the Ohio Bureau of Workers™ Compensation (the Burcau) based on estimates that
incorporale the past experience, as well as other considerations including the nature of cach claim
or mcident and relevant trend factors  Parucipants in the Plan annually fund the workers’
compensation liability based on rates set by the Bureau to collect the cash needed in subsequent
fiscal vears to pay the workers” comp on claims of p P State agencies and universitics
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Note 15 — Component Unit

Youngstown State University Foundation (YSUF or Foundation) 15 a legally scparate nonprofit
organization exempt from federal income tax and classified as a public chanity. YSUF 1s devoted to
the support, exp and develop of edy | programs at the University that are useful
to the student and beneficial to the University community. Because these restricted resources held
by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of the University, the Foundation 1s
considered a component unit of the University

YSUF is a nonprofit organization that reports under FASB standards.  As such, certain revenue
recognition cniteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition cniteria
and presentation features  With the exception of necessary presentation adjustments. no
modifications have been made to YSUF's financial information in the University's financial repont
for these differences

The following tables present information about the Foundation’s assets measured at fair valuc on a
recurring basis at June 30, 2022 and 2021 and the valuation techniques used by the Foundation to
determine those fair values

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at June 30, 2022

Quoted Prices In Significant Other Significant
Active markets for  Observable Unobservablke
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Balance at
(Level 1) (Level2) (Level 3) June 30,2022
Investments

Cash and cash equivalents s s -8 -8 28TAM
Common stock - US. stocks - 75,919,866
Common stock - Non-11S stocks v 5139377
Mutual funds
Exchange traded 43528576 - - 43528576
Moncy market 6351441 - = 6351441
Fised mcome 18.947.72 2071584 . 39,663,572
Equity 39,64 .
Total rmutual funds 108,523 20715842
Altemative nvestments
Private cquity - -
Conzmodities hedge funds -
Total akiemative nvestments - - 45 35310708
Total $ _1R9.8M 108 § 20715844 § 5308 255896656

Investments measured at NAV -
Hedge funds
Totalassets
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Assels Measured at Fair Value on a Recuming Basw ab June 30, 2021

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY

Quoted Prices m_ Significant Other | Significant
Activemarkels for  Obsenvable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Balarice at
(Level 1) (Level2)y (Level 3) June 30. 2021
Investments
Cashoand cash equrvalents 3 372904 3 - ] - s T2 M

Common stock - U S stocks

Mutual funds

67.505,292

©7.505.292

Exchange tmded 48.7RO.T6S F ARTR,T0S
Maney market 5.0MRT25 - - 5. 0RT28
Fiaed meome 25,185,168 20,714,887 - 45000055
B6I4T 3G & E GOS0

146,141,004 2071 8RT B T 855 801

vate equity = & 13520159
Commodities hedge tunds - - 1322067
Totalaltemative myestments - - LERIG 220

Total £ 214019200 $ 20714887 § IR 20 265,580,311
Investments measured at NAV -

Hedge funds 55.615.516

Total assets $ 125195839

Net assets without donor restrictions at June 30. 2022 and 2021 consist of the following

2022
Curmrent operstons S 1527790600 3
Amvunts commsited to the University to be disbuned 681155
Total net assets without donor restnctions $ 159593219 3 179416070
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Net asscts with donor restnicnions as of June 30 are available for the following purposes

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
FORTHE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Funding Agency/Fund Award
Department of Education - Education Stabiluaton Fund
COVID-19 Higher Education Fancrgency Relief Fund - Student Aid 5 25TIHMR

COVID-19 1igher Blucation Ernergency Relief Fund - Insttutional Portion 12ATH0N
ted States Department of Treasury
“oronavirus Rebef Fund (through the Ohio Dept. of Higher Education)
1 For Public Broadcssting

hilization Fund 223564

O}

S GLoazae8
Revenue. reflected as federal appropnations n the § of Revenues. Exp and Changes

n Net Position, totaled $33 228 720 1n fiscal vear 2022 compared to $24.976,068 in fiscal year 2021,
whereas expenses totaled $24.040.000 in fiscal year 2022 compared 1o $22.094.262 in fiscal vear
2021 Substantially all awarded funds have either been spent as of June 30, 2022 or encumbered

The severity of the continued impact due to COVID-19 on the University s linancial condition,
results of operations or cash flows will depend on a number of factors. including. but not Limited 1o,
the duration and severity of the pandemic and the extent and severity of the impact on the
University's community, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted
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Plan Years Ended 2014 to 2021

University’s

proporticnate
share of the
University's aollective net Plan fiduciary net
University's propurtionate pension liability pusition as a
proportion of - share ol the net as apercentage of  pereentage of the
the net pension pension liabiliy Unaversity's the emplayer's Total pension
Plan Year Tabnlity (avset) (asset) coverad pay roll coverad pay roll hisbility
Ntate Teachers Retirement System (5 TRS Ohio)
2 0 281650% $ 3601046 $ 14931561 9249 L L
03146150 $ 76.130,559 $42.404.403 75.50%
2019 1) 328704 § 72710830 $43.128.083 7 4.
2018 0 325960 s S TL6TL3%9 S41.735.926 T3
2017 § TRA29.26% $3L199.747 TR,
2016 S16.600 806 s41.821.207 66.80%
2015 0361214% $ 99828984 $42.774.459 72000
2014 [RTSFLHIM $ 91812061 $333135100 14700

022 021
Subject 1o the Foundation's spending policy and appropriatio
Investments in perpetuity Gineluding onginal gt anmount of
$110.504,129 and $106,026,54, a5 of June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively), which. once approprated. is expendable to suppornt
vanous activites S OLISTEROT6 S 1130446
Subject to appropration and expenduures when a specified event
occurs
Funds available to assist the University s Department of Phalosophy
and Religous Studies m the scholarly study of religion. history,
and culture 1274925 1713218
Funds available to assist the Universaty in land acquisitions 514.212 S11L996
Land received in kand 13289 41521
Other (156650 £391.3200
Subtotal 1,678,772 1,575,438
Subject to the passage of tme - Pledges receivable for the benefit of
the Univensity for scholarships and other progranms or endowments 9,537,301 LA
Net assets with donof restrctions S 147000141 8 147722123

Financial support from YSUF was $9.328.575 for the fiscal year ended June 30. 2022 and
$9,987.574 for the fiscal vear ended June 30. 2021, Financial support from YSUF has been
committed for fiscal vear 2023 in the amount of $10,907.374

Complete fi 1 for the Young: n State University Foundation can be requested
from The Youngstown State University Foundation

on declared the outbreak of a respiratory discase
own as COVID-19

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Orgam.
caused by a new coronavirus a pandemic, no

To offsct the financial impact to students. the losses mcurred by the University due to the disruption
caused by COVID-19 and to defrav COVID-19 expenses. the University reccived grants and other
relief primarily authorized through the Coronavirus Aid. Relief, and Economic Secunity (CARES)
Act. the Coronavirus Reliel & Recovery Supplemental Appropnations Act (CRRSAA). and the
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 The total amount awarded from the onsct of the pandemc
through June 30, 2022, cumulatvely, was $64 6 million detailed as follows

tem (OPERS)

2 § 19445611 $40.205.249 4530

2020 122 § 12376.291 $ 3248636 B4 h5%

2019 02446680 § 47,840,867 $40.601,178 783" B244%
023840 § 70477168 S4L119217 171407, TR0
125049, § 40,146,952 $.40,426,282 99 T 00
D289 § 98744858 £ 139,39 148.36% RO00%e
0269315° § 46,516,739 £39.715,198 H713% R000%
0 2R4240% § 34,173,082 £40,769,505 83 82% B100%

The plan vear ends on June 30 for STRS Ohio and December 31 for OPERS
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Schedules of the University’s Pension Contributions

Conribations
recognized by the
pension plan in
relation to the
statutonty or

Cominbutions in contractually required
relation 10 the employér contribution
Statutonly statutonly Annual as n pervent of the
required required contribution University's employer's covered
Fiscal Year contribution contributions deficiency coveral pay ol pavroll
State Teachers Retirement System (STRS Ohio)
$4.766.137 §4.766.737 s - 538,230,598 1247%
S1865415 §4,865815 5 - $38933,361 1250%
S5318.458 $5.318.458 s - 542404408 1254%
$5.404.201 $5.404.211 s EERNBERIE] 1233%
$5.195.369 §5,195.369 s 41735920 12.45%
§5,107.383 £5,107.383 s S41.199.747 1240%
2016 $5.153427 $5.153.427 S $41.521.217 1241%
2018 $$318436 $5315.436 s $42,774.459 12434
Ohin Public Empluy ees Retirement System (OPERS)
2022 $5.191.644 $5.391.644 s S417R1130 12900
2021 S4816.3%0 54816380 5 . £37.506,171 1284%
2020 $5.170.188 $S.171.188 $ - $40.296.691 12835
2019 $3.180.816 85 6 s $ 40,481,204 1282%
018 $3.104.871 $5.104871 s S41095.514 1242%
017 $35.043,147 $5.043,147 s $ 39.90 1665 1264%
2016 S4994.138 54994138 s §39.458.926 1266%
pATES 3095976 $5.095976 s £ 40,264,007 12 66%

Changes of benefir terms
There were no changes in benefit terms affecung the STRS Ohio and OPERS plans

Changes of assumptions
STRS Ohio - Duning the plan vear ended June 30, 2021, the investment rate of return decreased
from 7 45 percent to 7.00 percent

Dunng the plan year eaded June 30, 2017, there were changes to several assumptions for STRS
Ohio The cost-ol-living adjustment dropped from 2.00% to 0.00%  The wage inflation dropped
from 2.75% to 2.50%. The investment rate of retumn decreased from 7.75% 1o 745%  The
mortality tables used changed from RP-2000 to RP-2014

OPERS - Duning the plan year ended December 31, 2021, there were changes w several
assumptions for OPERS The discount rate was reduced from 7.50% 10 6. 9% The wage inlflation
dropped from 3 25% 10 2.75% . The projected salary increase range changed from 3.25%-10.75%
to 2 75%-10.75% The experience study changed from the 5-vear period ended December 31,

75

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONT.)

2015 1o the 5 year period ended December 31, 20200 The monality tables used changed from
RP2014 10 PUB-2010

Dunng the plan vear ended December 31, 2018, the discount rate was reduced from 7 50% to
7 20%. During the plan year ended December 31, 2016, there were changes to several assumptions
for OPERS  The wage inflation dropped from 3. 75% to 3.25%. The projected salary increase
range changed from 4 25%-10.05% to 3.25%-10.75% The mortality tables used changed from
RP-200010 RP-2014

76

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONT.)

Schedules of the University's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset)
Plan Years Ended 2017 to 2021

University’s

propertionate
share of the
University collective net Plan fiduciary
University's proportionate OPEB liability as  niet position as a
proportion of ahare of the act apercentageofl  peroentage of the
thenet OPEB OPEB hability University's the employer's total OPER
Plan Year Luability (asset) {axset) coverad pav ol coverad pav roll luahility
State Teachers Retirement System (STRS Ohin)
2021 0,281650% S(SUIB0M)  S3I89ILS61 174.70%
' §(5,530,000)  $42404.403 182.10%
2019 ' S(5H0000)  S43.128.083 174.70%
2018 . §(5237.452) $£41.735920 176.00%
2017 . S 12881469 S41.199.747 47.10%

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS )
2021 0232723% $(7.289.241) $40.205249

$ (3.956.443) SR 248636
2019 $ 33470540 $30.601.178
2018 0.256109% § 33 300,448 S41119.217
2017 0255930% $27.793.199 540446282

The plan vear ends on June 30 for STRS Ohio and December 31 for OPERS
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Schedules of the University’s OPEB Contributions

Coanbutions
recagnized by the
OPEB plan in relation

10 the statutorily or
Contnbutions in con ally required
relation to the employ er contnbution
Statutonly statutonly as a pereent of the
requind T Annual contribution  University's  employer's covered
Fiscal Yewr__conteibution conteibutions deficiencs coverad pay roll pavroll
State Teachers Retirement System (STRS Ohin)
s - s - 5= S 38.239.538 0.00%
- s - S 35933561 0.00%
s - s s - $ 22.404.303
§ = s £l 3 $
s - s s - s

Ohis Pullic Employees Retirement System (OPERS)

2022 s . s - s - § 41781130 000%
2021 s s $ - $ 37.506.171 0.00%,
2020 s t s - § 40296691 000
2009 s s s - § 40481204 000
2018 § 190221 190221 s - S 41085514 046%

Changes of benefit terms
There were no significant changes in benefit terms affecting the STRS Chio and OPERS plans for
the plan years ended Junc 30, 2021 and December 31. 2021, respectively

Changes of assumptions

STRS Ohio - During the plan vear ended June 30, 2021, the vestment rate of retumn decreased
from 7 45% 10 7.00%  The health carc cost trend rates also decreased from 4 93% 1o 9.62% initial
and 4.00% ulumate for plan year ended June 30, 2020, to 16.20% percent to 30.00% nitial and
4.00% ultimate for plan vear ended June 30, 2021

Dunng the plan vear ended June 30, 2018, there were changes to several assumptions for STRS
Ohio. The health care cost trend rates decreased from 6.00% to 11.00% initial and 4. 50% ulumate
for plan vear ended June 30, 2017. 1o (5.23%) 1o 9.62% initial and 4.00% ultimate for plan vear
ended June 30, 2018 The discount rate increased from a blended rate between the long-term
expected rate of return and a 20-vear municipal bond rate of 4,13 % to the investment rate of retum
ol 7 45% bascd on the cash flow analysis

OPERS - Duning the year ended December 31, 2021, there were changes to several assumptions
for OPERS The expenence study changed from the 3-year period ended December 31. 2015 1o
the 5-year period ended December 31, 2020 The municipal bond rate decreased from 2. 00% 1o
1 84% Wage inflation decreased 3 25% 102 73%  The projected salary increase range changed
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from 3 25%-10.75% to 2 75%-10.753% Health care cost trend rate deercased from 8 50% imual,
3.50% ulumate in 2035 to 5. 30% mial. 3 30% ulumate in 2034

Dunng the plan year ended December 31. 2020, there were changes to several assumptions for
OPERS  The health care cost trend rates decreased from 10 50% iual and 3 50% ulumate to
8.30% imtial and 3. 50% ulumate  The discount rate was increased [rom 3 16% 10 6 00%

Dunng the plan year ended December 31 2019, there were changes to several assumptions for
OPERS  The health care cost trend rates decreased from 10 00% mtial and 3 25% ulumate to
10.50% mual and 3 50% ultimate. The discount rate was reduced from 3 96% 10 3 16%
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Report an Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accardance with Governmant Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor's Report

To Management and the Board of Trustees
Youngstawn State Universty

We have audited, in accordance with audting slandalds generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards apphcable to financial audits Auditing issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financ:al slalsmenls uf the business-type activities and the discretely presented
component unit of Youngstown State University (the "University”), a component unit of the State of Ohia, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2022 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
University's basic financial statements, and have issued our report therean dated Octaber 13, 2022

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and perfarming our audi of the financial statements, we considered the University's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audd procedures that are appropriate in the
arcumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements. but nat for the purpase of
expressing an opinian con the effectiveness of the University's internal contrel Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control

A deficiency in internal cantrol exists when the design or operation of a control does nat allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or delect and corect,
misstatements on a tmely basis. A matenal isa ,ofa of . in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibity that a milenal misstatement cf the University's financial
statements will not be plsven!ea or detected and corrected, on a tmely basis A significant deficiency is a

'y, ora of defi , in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enaugh to mert attention by thase charged with governance

Our cansideration of internal control was for the imted purpose descnbed in the first paragraph of this secton and
was not designed fo identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies Given these limitations, during cur audt we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses However, materal or sigl may exist that were
not identified

Repart on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of chlaning reascnable assurance aboul whether the University's financial statements are free from
matenal misstatement, we performed tests of its with certain pi of laws, regs , cantracts,
and grant agreements, noncomphbance with which could have a drect and material effect on the financial
statements However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinien. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards




To Managemont and the Board of Trustoes
Youngstown State Universdy

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and comptiance and the
rosuits of that testing, and not to provide en opimion on the offoctvencss of the Umvermf; intarmmal contro! of on
cotmlunoe This report is an integral part of an audt n Audting

the Uni y's intomal control and lms is not

sustable for nnyomcf purpese
4‘&— ! M, PLLE
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moran Beirppety
Report on Complisnce for Each Mapor Federal Program and Report on Interral Control Over Compliance Requred by the
Undorm Gudance

Independent Auditor's Repost
To the Board of Truttees
Youngsiown State Unrversty

Report on Compltance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Esch Major Feders! Program

We have audted Youngstown Stsle University’s (the “Unsversty”) comphance weh the types of compkance requrements
ertifed 23 subject to sudt in the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Complance Supplement that could have 8 drect
and matenal effect on each of the Univeraty’s magr ledesal for the yesr ended June 20, 2022 The Universty's

programs
mepoe federa! programs are identied i the summary of sud2or's resus secton of the accompanywy schedule of fndngs
and quesboned cosls

in our cpevon, the Ureversty compbed, nmmmgﬁhhmrmzmwmmmﬂ
. 2022

have a drect and matenal effect on each of the major federal programs for the ysas ended June 30,

Basis tor Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We condxted owr suit of compiance in accordance wih suding standards generslly acceptad in the Unted States of
Amenca (GAAS), the standards zpphcable to finsncial sudis contned N Government Auditng Standards, issued by the

Compiroler Generat of nmmmwmwmm-dnﬁzuscuourmunmmm
uwmmmmmum Cost Principles. and Audt Feders! Awerds (the “Uncform Guidsnce”).

Our responsibibes under those standards and the Undorm Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsdidties
for the Audit of Compiience secton of ous report.

We are required o be independernt of tha Uriversty and to meet our other ethical responudsities in accordance with relevant

«w;mmmmuanommmw-MmMMuMm sppropriate to

Mlmbww on compliance for sach major federal program. Ow sudd does not provide a legal
verady wihthe referred to sbove.

[} with the referred to above and for tha design, implementzton, and
maintenance of mmmuwmammmmdmmumum ndes, and
provisions of contracts of grant agreements applicadle to the Uriversdy’s federal programs.
Audtor's Responsibifides for the Audit of Complisnce

Ouwr objectives are to obkain reasoneble s3surance about whether matens!
referred 1o above occurred, mmwhwumu.lr\dmmmwoﬁhumﬂmmmmm
butis

our audit. Rcuembhmn.ﬁoﬁlcvﬂw therefors, is not a guarartes
that en sudit with GAAS, Avm wnummmnmm
memmmnhm Tmmu!m«mmuummmpummw‘gmmumw
than for that resuiting fom eror, as fraud may involve forgery,
overmide of internal wihtl lebmdwlmhw'mmdummm
is a substantial fikekhood lha wumdmlyonnm.ngugno amwmm judgment made by a reasonable user of
the report on campliance about the University's compliance with the requsemaents of each major federal program as a whole,
. DIPRAXITY

To the Board of Trustees
Youngstown State University

snawdtin with GAAS, Auttng and the Undorm Gudance, we
*  Exescise professona! judgment and maintain professone! skepticam throughout the auda

o Ientify and assess the risks of matsnal noncompkence, whether due to fraud or error, and desgn &nd perform sudt
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedurea inchude mpm-mmmmmm
Eversi with the

aw
n the o

. MmmwmwunmmummmmmMMnmwww

and to test and report on internal control over comphance N

mmhuﬂ«mm wmbhmdwmnwwhmdm

University's intemal control over

anmmmm-mmawwmmsm among cther maders, the planned scope
and tmng of the zudt and any n internal control over complance that we
identified during the sudit.

Report on Intemal Control Qver Compliznce

AMnmmwmmmmmamdnmummmm
allow management or employees, i the nocmal course of performing ther assigned funchons, 1o prevent, or detect and

corredt, with & type of ola M«ﬂwwmlmm A matenal weakness in
ntemal ) a in internal control over complance such that
i wmctywdmwmdommwn

3 of a type of
federa! program that is less severe than 3 matenal weakness in intemal control over comptance, mw:omumtn
meit attertion by those charged with govemance.

Ow consideration of internal control Gver mmmmmnﬁWWmnmaw
dentity afl

for the Auc? of Compliance section above and was not designed to
might be matenal of sk nnmmﬂwmm
during ow audit we did not identify any deficiencies i cortrol over compliance that we consder to be matenal
as defined sbove. However, material weaknesses of sigreficant deficiencies in internal control over complance
‘may exist that were not dentifed.

O sudi was not designed for the purpose of expressing &n opirwon oA the effectiveness of mnternal control over compkance
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed

The purpese of this report on intemnal control over compkance is solely 1o describa the scope of our testing of internal control
over compliance and the resuits of tha! testing based on the requrements of the Ursform Guxdance Accordingly, thea report s

not sustable for any cther purpose.
% { )bw, PLee
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Youngstown State University

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Yeoar Ended June 30, 2022

Assatance Total Amount
Leang Pass-reogn Ercey Provded v
Tae umbe Foderal Exponsaes
Casten
Stwdont Financtal Acsistance Clustar
U'S Department of Educadon - Dwect Programs.
Foderal Susptemental Educasonal Opporunty Grans 8007 ot Agsic atie - Y
Foderal Work Sy Program [ Nt Appac ste B ss397
Foceral Pertoms Lown Program. o oot Apgicasee - new
Focural Pt Grant Program [ oot Acpucanie - 1507183
Fodrat Ovwct Sadent Loses CET] ot Ao adie - e
Tocal Scudont Finsnchal Assistance Chester —_— A
Retaarch aad Developament Chutat
U'S Department of Commercs - Deact Program
Prasmencs lor Putsc Wons and Economee Driopment
1130 oot Acgucatie . am
'S Duoarmaet cf Commacs - Pass-voeon Program
Natonal Oceanc: & AImotcAenc Amaa¥acon - The Oh
S Unnarsey - Sea Grant Sucpon nar @oru - st
Tot U'S Decarmment of Commence . w0
U'S Deparment o Passaroun
Natonal Contes tor Mansactnng snd Machneg
INCOMM) - Ar Force Delense Resesrch Soances
200 Nz Avedatse user [
Nasonal Coxter fr Delernss Marutactunng and Machang
(NCONS) - Ar Fores Dvlense Resewrth Scances Program
126000 Mot Aatatse 035
(NCOMAY) - Axr Force Delense Ressarch Scunces Program
1200 [ n0e
Ax Foace Rusewrch Lab - Wnght Sate Unmersty
Ressarch and Techmoloqy Deveooment 12010 6711001 — o 1m0
TotalU'S Doparement of Defonse e 2301918
Raaonal Aeronautcs snd Space Admetranon - Drect
Progems
Scace am Not Agpic.adie - 03:3]
Scece Tecnmoiogy aon Not Appic st . 33901
Soe notes to schedule of expenditures
of federal awards. ]



Stato
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022
Assatance Total Amovet
Liong Pasa-thvough Ensty Prowsedts
Fooursl Tae Numbee
Clutlars (comnued):
Research and Dovelopment Chuster (Contivwed)
Naoonal e and S o
Programs
O Space Grant Consorvem - S am Awiatle . 1816
Soace Tetescope Scwnce Instnse - Scince a0 HST-GO-18238 G34-A .
Science Insvns - Science Qo HST.GO-15284 . .
Scace Tewscope Scwnce Ianee - Scnce ac NST-GO-16082 002-4 - 1450
Souce Telescope Scince Inssoe - Spance a30m HST-GO-18267 0024 . 7397
Scwnce -Sownce 001 Not Avwiabie s
Sace Telaseope Stence insttute - Sence aw HSTGO-ASTRIONA - e
AMronawsics and . 63024
M&miummmmt
Ergnesreg Granes aron Not Apciscable . 2689
srdPrrca Scances 7049 Not Agsixcatle . 72548
Earceson enc aumn Ren arore NotApphcable 18460 318408
Total Nasonal Scrence Founaatan ) 610640
U'S Department of Energy - Pats-feough Programs
Renewsbie Energy Educadon and Quirsach LRt 759308 16333
Renewstle Energy Educaton snd Ovawach s1.07 7646533 8048
TotslU'S Depsromont of Energy 24978
U'S Deparmment of Ecucanon - Pass-rough Programs.
Educanon - .
Specral Eucaton Grants © States o 01298022 . oen
Edicaon - -
‘Soeesal Educaton Granss & Sates a0 01368400007 . 3910
Specaal Educaton Grants o States o 014%07-00002 - 17,000
Eaucaton -
Sowcasl Educanon Grants o States eanz? 013620.00002 - 1498
Ot Department of Educabon - The Unarsty of Cincimnat -
Specxal Educason Grants  Stales. 840274 012963-022 . 219%
School Improvement Grans a7 o1n19-002 - 2138
W Wtetactuat Desadions mm?mm
&4 27A 60051504 . U84
Total US Depastment of Education - 839580
See notes to schedule of expendtures
of federal awards. a7

Youngstown State University
Schedule of Expendi of Federal Awards (Continued)
Vear Ended June 30,2022
Assatance Totat Amount
Latng Pass-ihough Entey Prowded %o
Foteral AgencPats-tv Tive Number Joenttyng Nmber Fedem €
Csziers (contrwed)
Research and Devaopment Chuster (Continuad]
us o
Nurse Anesthotst Traneeshizn 9 Not Applicable . 19633
Orgesove. and Kxaney Drseases Exramurat
Research 9387 Not Appicasie . 9190
us s P o
VD15 - C .
Ot State Unersdy -
Em-wgy 8nd Laborasary Capac &y for Infecton
90323 GRIZNTEWSPC-100K95604 . mers
Covarsayof Psourh - Agm Resowren SILE  CNVADGISSS2 (131451-1) - 16 548
Unnessiy of Prasturgh - Agng R nees 360851} - 33167
Total U'S Department of H4path and Human Senwces - 392320
Total Research and Development Chuster 26155 15260
TR Chstar
U'S Deparimant of Eaucaton - Ouect Program
TRIO Upwesd Bound s 047A Not Appicanie . 310048
Total TR Chustar - Hows
Ecomomi¢ Development Cluttes
Econome: Oevelopment. Aqm. Drect rogram
Economic Adustmaent As: nxr Net Applic sbie -
Totsl Econamis Ouvelopmaent Cluster
Child Nutrition Cluster
US Decarmentol Agrcuee - Pess o Progam
Otuo Depertment of Educabon - Summer Food Seruce
foidedvonovadd 10659 o2a289m . 2738
Total Child Hetrion Chster . am
Total chustons 8188 s3s30 841
Othor Programs.
US Department of Commarce - Pass-througn Program
< A
Education Anards 103 Net Available N 56%6
U'S Department of Defense - Pass-through Programs
State of v, Deveiopment Senvces Agency - Procurement
Techacal Assistance for Business Fums. 12002 PTAG0210827 . 2267
Satw ot Ono Deveiopment Serwces AQency - Procursment
Tochncal Assrstance for Business Fums 12002 PrAG20220527 na

Tota US Department of Detense TR

See notes to schedule of expenditures
of federal awards. 88

Youngstown State Univers|

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022
Assatance Tetal Amount
La Pass-trough Entty Prowaed ta
Foourni A ogram Tite Number
Ottt federal awards.
Othar Progrms
US Deparoment of State - Ourect Program
Puphc Drplomacy Programs. 19040 Not Aggi able . 18076
us Dummmdhc rmuly Pass through Programs.
COVID-19 - State of ONio Oeparbment of Educaton -
Comams AocaFund 1o Net Avadadie . aren
COVID-19 - State of Omo Oepartment of Education -
Coronawus Reset Fund 1o Not Avadabie 1117
Totat U'S Degartment of e Troasury
National Aeronautics 3nd Spece Adminisration - Dwect
Program
Scionce am Not Appicable . 759
Smak Busess ASMASTALON - Pass-Tough Programs.
State of Ohio, Development Seruces AQency - Smail
1Cor 59037 0586-20.350 - 152842
Saw of Oho, Development Seruces Agency - Smatl
Butness Devesogment Centers sp037 0586-21-326 . 100
State of OMo, Development Senices Agency - Smatl
Busmess Devwlogment Carters: syt ossozaa . wesn
Total Smas Business ASMnsradon - 452843
US Department of Educazion - Oirect Programs.
Programa 84334 Not Agphc able - 6509
us
COVID-19 - Fagher Educaton Emergency Rehef Fund -
Wsotusonst Porton s Not Appixable . 11825
COVID-1S - Mghet Educaton Emengency Rebet Fund -
84 425 NSt Apghic able . 15342 446
COVID-19 Wl’ Ecucaton Emergency Reliet Fund -
Insttunonsl Pt 84 425 Not Applic able . pALAL
COVID19 Higher Emmea Emergenty Reliet Fund -
Wnstndona) Porton s Not Apgticatie - 5708543
us sww-r
Pas3-Bwough Pr
‘COVID19. Gavermer's Emerouncy Educasan Rolet Fund
(GEER) sac Not Avaiatse . a8
Pt Fund (ESER 1o 844250 1899 . 5192
COVI-19 - Amercan Rescve Pran Elemantary and
Seconcany St Emerguncy Rl Furd (ARP ESSER) 84250 083156 - 04
ol Eucavon Stabizavon F N 1 k1
See notes to schedule of expenditures
of federal awards. 89
Youngstown State University
Schedule of E di of Federal Awards (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022
Assatance Totsl Amount
stng Pass.through Erary Prowded s
Foderal m TiBe Number Idanttying Nu Fodersl Expenctures.
Other federal mnar
mnm (Continued)
U'S Depatment of Education - Pass-Birough Programs
Comemunty Leamung Corters ’ w2 12007 . E
State of Oho Department of Educadon - Tweaty-Fust Contury
Commenty Learming Conters 84287 109% . s
State of Ono Department of Educadon - Twanty-Fust Cantury
Communty Loarmng Centars st 10864 - E
cmmumyummcqm Y T s 12107 . 158 868
Communty Loamng Contors Y 287 10836 . 18532
State of Ona Department of Educaton - Twenty-Fest Contury
Cammundy tearming Conters. 4287 10864 . 120013
‘Communay Learming Cortaes " s 17307 - 12073
Total State of Omo Deparment of Education - Twenty- 514794
Fust  Century Community Leamng Contars
DC Dopastment of Higher Eucaton - Colege Acress Chaliengs
Grant Program
RN Not Avdabie 5 20
Total U S Department of Education - TIININ
U'S Dpartment of Heal?h and Human Sences - Pass-tuough
Progama
Foster Care - Tica-V-E 93658 G-2223-08.008) . 0
Fosier Care - Titw (V-E v 83658 G-2021-06-0247 . 2500
Foster Care - Toa-v-E 658 6-2223:06.008) . 41102
Totsl U S Oepertment of Heakh and Mumen Seonces - 86.852
U'S Department of Homelang Securrly - Pass-through
Programs.
Resources - Boating Salety Financial Assatance
srenz Not Avedaie . 336
Unted States Cosst Gard - Oio Depastmant of Natural
Resourtes - Boabng Satety Fasncial Asssance
sror 0220400 18387
Totd U S Depariment of Hometand Secunty [3:y
Total cther federal awards. —_—18 e
Tota odrat avards s muss  wewus
See notes to scheduls of expenditures
of federal awards. 90



Youngstown State University
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the *Schedule’) includes the federal grant
activity of Youngstewn State University (the *University’) under programs of the federal gavernment for the
year ended June 30, 2022 The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requiremants,
Gost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the “Uniform Guidance’) Because the
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the University, itis not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net pesition, or cash flaws af the University

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the Schedule are reparted on the same basis of accounting as the basic financial
statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cest principles contained in Title 2U 'S Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administralive Requirements, Cos! Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Fedaeral Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable ar are limited
as to reimbursement, except for expendtures related to ALN 21019, Coronavirus Reliel Fund (CRF)
CRF does not apply the cost principles contained in Ttle 2 U'S Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Raguiraments, Cost Principles, and Audit Raquirements for Federal Awards, but
rather applies the U S Department of the Treasury's guidance Pass-through entity identifying numbers
are presented where available

The University has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate to recaver indirect costs,
as allowed under the Uniform Guidance, and instead uses indirect cost rates ranging from 8 percent to
26 3 percent per the respective grant agreements or current federally negatiated indirect cost rate.

Note 3 - Loan Balances

Federal Direct Loan Program

The University participates in the Federal ct Student Loan Program (84.268) The University originates
but does not provide funding for faderal direct loans (FOL) The amount presented on the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards represents the value of new FDL processed by the University for the year
ended June 30, 2022

Federal Perkins Loan Program

The amount presented on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the Federal Periins Loan
Program (84.038) represents the value of new loans made or received during the audit period, plus the
teginning of the audit period balance of loans from previous years for which the federal government
impases continuing g The amount oL g for the Federal Perkins Loan
Program at June 30, 2022 is $99,538. Total new loans disbursed under the Federal Perkins Loan
Program for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 were SO

YOUNGSTOWN
STATE
UNIVERSITY

Youngstown State University
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued Unmodified
Intemal control over financial reporting

+ Matenal weakness{es) identfied? Yes X _Ne

= Significant deficiencyfies) identified that are

not to be matenal g 7 Yes X Naone reported
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X None reparied
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs

»  Matenal weakness(es) identified? Yes No

= Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered ta be matenal weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Any audtt findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 2 CFR 200 516(a)? Yes X __No

Identification of major programs

Assistance
Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster Opinion
Various Research and Development Cluster Unmodified
84425 COVID-19 - Education Stabilization Fund Unmedified
Deilar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $2,810,104
Audtee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes Ne

Section Il - Financial Statement Audit Findings
None
Section lll - Federal Program Audit Findings

None

-7



*Ohio Revised Code §3345.72

*Ohio Administrative Code §126:3-1-01.

follows:

of composite score

composite score

Enacted in 1997, Senate Bill 6 provides a framework for state
policymakers to annually evaluate the financial health of Ohio's public
colleges and universities. S.B. 6 is codified in state law:

*Viability ratio: expendable net assets + plant debt. = 30% of

*Primary reserve ratio: expendable net assets + total operating

expenses + interest on debt. = 50% of composite score
**All calculations exclude the impact of GASB 68/75**

YSU's FY 2022 ratios and scores are depicted in the table below:

S.B. 6 requires the Ohio Department of Higher Education to employ a
scoring system using each state university’s audited financial
statements as the basis for three key performance ratios, calculated as

*Net income ratio: change in total net assets + total revenues. = 20%

What the ratios mean:

*Net income ratio: compares expenses
and revenues to determine if a campus
is operating within its resources.

*Viability ratio: measures a campus’s
ability to manage long-term debt
obligations.

*Primary reserve ratio: measures a
campus’s ability to use reserves in the
absence of future revenue.

Key metric: Composite Score, the sum
of weighted scores for the net income,
viability and primary reserve ratios.

5.0 is the highest-best score possible.

: Sf;fé of Ohib Sénaté?ill 6 Erianciiafl Ratid Ari;Iysis ijouniésth\iI’n Stat;UniversityleY 2052
Senate Bill 6 Ratios

Historical Data

YSU’s S.B. 6 composite scores have fluctuated over the last
10 years but have been stable since FY 2013.

5.0
4.5
4.0
3.5
3.0
25
2.0
1:5
1.0
0.5
0.0

Fiscal Distress m‘ Fiscally Stable

Scale FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22

Senate Bill 6 Sliding Scale

Institutional Comparison

The FY 2022 (preliminary) and FY 2021 composite scores for Ohio's state universities are

shown in the graph below:

B = =) =
- — o —
ight | Sha Central
Ohio State | KentState| Miami | NEOMED [Cleve.St*| UC | OhioU. | BGSU | YSU ut Akron WS':g" S“‘"‘“’e e
225core| 39 39 37 33 a4 34 34 34 34 3
FY215core| 47 a7 a7 a1 47 44 44 a4 42 42 42 42 34 22

Net Income Ratio: Weighted
0 1 2 3 4 5 Score  Weight Score
<-.049 -05to 0 0to.009 .01t0.029 .03t0.049 =>.05 2 4 20% 0.20
-0.044
Calcull detail: ($9,673,759) / $218,040,265 = -0.044
Viability Ratio: Weighted
0 1 2 3 a 5 Score Weight Score
<0 Oto.29 .30t0.59 .60t0.99 | 1.0to 2.50 >2.50 4 30% 120
1.217
Calcul detail: $77,068,6132 / $63,334,752 = 1.217
Primary Reserve Ratio: Weighted
0 1 Z 3 4 5 Score Weight Score
<-10 -10t0.049 .05t0.099 .10t0.249 | .25t0.49 =>.50 4 50% 2.00
0.338
Calculation detail: $77,068,613 / $227,714,024 = 0.338
YSU Composite Score = sum total of ratio scores above: 3.40

*FY 2022 scores for Cleveland State, Central State, Shawnee State and Wright State were not available at the time this report was prepared.




YSU Anonymous Reporting Hotline

Aggregated Statistics
Fiscal Year 2023 Quarter 1

Fiscal Year

Hotline Activity Quarter 1 | Quarter 2 | Quarter 3 | Quarter 4 To Date
Total

Reports received 4 - - - 4

Closed
Unsubstantiated/insufficient .

_information . . ¥ o | 5
Process enhancements noted - - - - -
Investigation 3 - - - 3
Referred 1 - - - 1

Total Closed 4

Under review at quarter end - - - - -

Fiscal Year
Reporting Method Quarter 1 | Quarter 2 | Quarter 3 | Quarter 4 To Date
Total
Ethicspoint Phone 1 - - - 1
Ethicspoint Website 3 - - - 3
Total: 4 - - “ 4
Fiscal Year
Reporter Anonymity Quarter 1 | Quarter 2 | Quarter 3 | Quarter 4 To Date
Total
Anonymous + - - - 4
Not anonymous - - = . =
Total: 4 2 5 . 4




Audit Recommendations Status- FY2023 Q1

Recommendation
Audit Info Name Summary of Recommendation Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment
Audits _n Principal Investigator |Develop formal, ongoing periodic |Management believes that the audit items can  |Sponsor specific training Recommendation was implemented
i By 2 .
s Communication And |training for PI’s and potential PI's |be substantially addressed as a result of the materials are available on the  and validated. The finding was
Dated Issued 2/11/2019  Training that is aligned with funding agency |Nring aNeY Director of Research, Compliance | 9Rs website and periodically  adequately addressed and the status
guidelines. Ensure required a"dllmt'at'ves (Dr.fVan Al BT AN e updated. The development of has been changed to closed.
Risk Category Research Research Compliance |trainings are monitored for memEmElianaiEn ERASYstem, Fortinent | training will extend well
Audit leti tasks planned include: 1) Develop training . FY23 with th
Risk Level Moderate - [ER materials on the use of the ERA software and !nto bk : £
B ) ) establish procedures for proposal development }lmplementatlon of the n.ewer
Division Academic Affairs and submission, consistent with relevant ERA system currently being
Beaime 1/21/2020 requirements. 2) Develop training videos which |tested by the Vendor.
meet the scheduling needs of faculty, staff and
New Deadline 3/31/2023 | students. 3) Develop a recordkeeping process
‘ within the ERA software for monitoring training.
Current Status CLOSED
Recommendation E
Audit info N Summary of Recommendation Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment
e p— Pre-Approval Of Include Grants Accounting in the |Grants Accounting understands the desire |Automated workflows of travel Recommendation was implemented
u -02- . . e
Travel Expenses Concur automated approval to automate workflow approvals in Concur |reports to Grants Accounting  and validated. The finding was
Dated Issued 2/11/2019 Charged To Grants workflow routing for expenses rather than relying on manual routing. We 'has been implemented. adequately addressed and the status
) ) charged to grant funds. are exploring the use of automated has been changed to closed.
Risk Category Financial Research Compliance workflows for travel reimbursements in
Risk Level Low Audit Concur.
Finance/Business
Division Operations
Deadline 1/1/2020
New Deadline 6/30/2022
Current Status CLOSED
Recommendation
Audit info R Summary of Recommendation Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment
: Electronic Research |Develop a formal implementation |A viable ERA system was identified and Still using current system Recommendation was implemented
Audit # 2018-02-11 3 . i " A
Administration plan for the ERA system software |purchased. However, the vendor went out | (SmartGrant). The vendor is and validated. The finding was
Dated Issued 2/11/2019 System to enable appropriate oversight  |of business, rendering the selected |working on a system to fit the adequately addressed and the status
--------------------------- |and management of the project. | platform impractical. The Office of research administration needs has been changed to closed.
Risk Category Research Research Compliance Research has begun the process of of smaller institutions.
Risk Level Lo Audit 1 evaluating alternative systems and a Expected availability for
|potential ERA system has been identified. |implementation ranges from 6
Division Academic Affairs The procurement of the system is expected months to a year.
Saadiife 7/31/2090 in 1st quarter 2020 and implementation |
will follow.
New Deadline 3/31/2023 |
Current Status CLOSED
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Audit Recommendations Status- FY2023 Q1

Risk Category

Organizations Audit
Academic Affairs

Irequirements.

Students are required to attend
these sessions to apply for funds
|through SGA. A financial mgmt.

Recommendation : 5
Audit Info o Summary of Recommendation Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment
o - Policies And ‘Update policies to address Policies will be developed in this area. |Financial management policies Financial management procedures
o - |
Procedures i’financial management 'have been drafted for inclusion were added as section G in the Student
Dated Issued 2/17/2020 requirements including tax status, |in the Student Organization Organization Policies and also added
Student accounting concepts, record |policies and guidelines. to the Organization Advisor Manual.
Risk Category Financial Organizations Audit |keeping, contract requirements, Implementation to PNC will be presenting at the Student
Risk Level LW funding mechanisms and organization leaders and Leadership Retreat. It will be recorded
procedures, disbursement integration into website and and available online for ongoing
Division Student Experience controls, agency account and off- student guidelines expected by training for student treasurers.
campus cash accounts. |Jan. 2023.
Deadline 8/31/2020 P [
|
| |
New Deadline 1/31/2023 ‘ '
Current Status On Schedule
Recommendation s
Audit Info Naa Summary of Recommendation Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment
T A Training Oversight ‘Improve student organization Will review and update training delivery ~ |New measures have been putin Recommendation was implemented
ual -U1-
|training and oversight of training 'methods and subject matter as well as |place to track attendance to and validated. The finding was
Dated Issued 2/17/2020  Student compliance. |monitoring compliance with training mandatory training sessions. adequately addressed and the status

has been changed to closed.

Risk Category
Risk Level
Division
Deadline
New Deadline

Current Status

Organizations Audit
Academic Affairs

Low
Student Experience
8/31/2020
6/30/2022

CLOSED

campus space.

and Retreat. A restructuring within
Student Experience resulted in
Student Organization Management
falling under the Student Union.
This will streamline the connection
|between organization registration
|and reservations. Campus adoption
(for 25Live will streamline
reservation processes for all
academic spaces.

|
Risk Level Low : |session has been added as a
‘ [ |standard component. A Coord. of

Division Student Experience ‘ student involvement was hired and
Deadline 8/31/2020 is responsible for working with

student orgs to ensure compliance
New Deadline 6/30/2022 with policies. an online module is

being developed to expand online
Current Status CLOSED training.

Audit Info RecomNn;;nedatlon Summary of Recommendation Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment
P _— . Activity Management |Review and update policies, clarify \Will review and update policies regarding |A session reviewing university Recommendation was implemented
2 g roles and responsibilities and |use of space and provide updates to |reservation processes is offered in - and validated. The finding was

Dated Issued 2/17/2020  Student reinforce training related to use of |students, advisors and reservationists. each Student Leadership Summit  3dequately addressed and the status

has been changed to closed.

Page 2




Audit Recommendations Status- FY2023 Q1

Organizations Audit

student organization travel.

Recommendation .
Audit into N Summary of Recommendation Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment
A S04 Travel Management |Clarify roles and responsibilities, | Will clarify roles, enhance training and |A student travel session is Recommendation was implemented
U -01- > )
reinforce training and modify |retain student travel records for three mandatory training for every and validated. The finding was
Dated Issued 2/17/2020  Student record retention with regard to years. Student Organization. Additionally, 3dequately addressed and the status

an email about student travel has been changed to closed

Risk Category
Risk Level
Division
Deadline
New Deadline

Current Status

Human Resources Rich Center

Moderate
Academic Affairs
7/31/2021
12/31/2022

CLOSED

Center specific policies and
‘procedures.

|YSU BOT approval for Rich Center specific
policies and procedures.

Risk Category Academic Affairs policies and processes is sent to
| student organization officers each
Risk Level Low [fall. Student Activities & Campus
! Recreation have met with
Division Student Experience )
Procurement and Travel Services
Deadline 8/31/2020 on a regular basis to discuss travel
processes. Student org travel
New Deadline 6/30/2022 {records are now maintained for 3
years.
Current Status CLOSED [
|
Audit nfo Recon:vn;rennedatlon Summary of Recommendation Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment
di — Cash Account Signers |Clarify roles and responsibilities Working to bring all organizations into The Coordinator for Student Recommendation was implemented
e i And Cash Handling and monitor compliance with compliance. Will communicate with Involvement works closely with and validated. The finding was
Dated Issued 2/17/2020 policies related to cash account advisors regarding this policy. Also each Student Org. during the adequately addressed and the status
Student Organization 'signers. additional training and policy development reg|stration processtotransition has been changed to closed.
RiskiCategory FUMER] in this area. Will develop component of SERERIAIRNRL S i a0
: = provides appropriate verification to
Risk Level o annual registration to document o0 Bankito sonpert appropiisie
) compliance with account signatory |sig